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Corporate Profile

Belmont Bancorp. (the “Company”) is a $289 million bank
holding company, incorporated in Ohio. Belmont National Bank (the
“Bank” or “BNB”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, is an
FDIC-insured, federally chartered commercial bank.,

The Bank delivers a comprehensive range of financial products
and services to individuals, families, businesses and corporations
through twelve full service offices. Belmont National Bank’s primary
market areas for its consumer, commercial, trust and investment
services are Belmont, Harrison, Tuscarawas and Jefferson counties in
Ohio, and Marshall and Ghio counties in West Virginia.

Financial Summary

(000 s except per share data)

2802 2001
Net income (loss) $ 5997 $ (415
Operating Return on average assets 2.10% (0.15%)
results Return on average total equity 19.82% (1.57%)
Per Net income (loss) $ 054 $ (0.04)
share Book value at year-end 3.13 2.33
At Total assets $ 289,468 $ 288,856
year- Total loans 130,759 115,674
end Total deposits 230,243 238,486
Total shareholders’ equity 34,757 25,846
Capital Tier one risk-based capital ratio 16.2% 12.0%
ratios Total risk-based capital ratio 17.5% 13.2%
Leverage ratio 9.7% 7.1%
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ITEM 1-BUSINESS
BELMONT BANCORP,

Belmont Bancorp., (the “Company” or “Belmont”), is a bank holding company which was organized under
the laws of the State of Ohio in 1982, On April 4, 1984, Belmont Bancorp. acquired all of the outstanding capital
stock of Belmont National Bank (“BNB” or the “Bank™), a banking corporation organized as a national banking
association. BNB provides a variety of financial services and employs 144 people. In addition to the Bank, the
Company owns Belmont Financial Network, Inc., a non-bank subsidiary (“BFN”).

BELMONT NATIONAL BANK

BNB provides a wide range of retail banking services to individuals and small to medium-sized businesses.
These services include various deposit products, business and personal loans, residential mortgage loans, home
equity loans, and other consumer oriented financial services including IRA and Keogh accounts, safe deposit and
night depository facilities. BNB also owns automatic teller machines located at branches in Bellaire, Bridgeport,
Woodsdale, Elm Grove, Cadiz, the Ohio Valley Mall, Plaza West, Shadyside, Schoenbrunn and New Philadelphia
providing 24 hour banking service to our customers. BNB belongs to STAR Systems, Inc., a nationwide ATM
network with thousands of locations nationwide. BNB offers a wide variety of fiduciary services. The trust
department of the Bank administers personal trusts and estates.

BELMONT FINANCIAL NETWORK

On July 1, 1985, Belmont formed a subsidiary corporation, Belmont Financial Network, Inc. (“BFN”).
BFN serves as a community development corporation by investing in a low-income housing project that provides
low-income housing and historic tax credits.

SUPERVISION AND REGULATION

Belmont is supervised and examined by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve system under the
Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended (the “BHC Act”). The BHC Act requires the prior approval of the
Federal Reserve Board for a bank holding company to acquire or hold more than a 5% voting interest in any bank,
and restricts interstate banking activities. The BHC Act allows interstate branching by acquisitions anywhere in the
country and acquisition and consolidation in those states that had not opted out by January 1, 1997.

The BHC Act restricts Belmont's nonbanking activities to those which are determined by the Federal
Reserve Board to be closely related to banking and a proper incident thereto. The BHC Act does not place territorial
restrictions on the activities of nonbank subsidiaries of bank holding companies. Belmont’s banking subsidiary is
subject to limitations with respect to transactions with affiliates.

The enactment of the Graham-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999 (the “GLB Act”) represented a pivotal point in the
history of the financial services industry. The GLB Act swept away large parts of a regulatory framework that had
its origins in the Depression Era of the 1930s. Effective March 11, 2000, new opportunities became available for
banks, other depository institutions, insurance companies and securities finms to enter into combinations that permit
a single financial services organization to offer customers a more complete array of financial products and services.
The GLB Act provides a new regulatory framework for regulation through the financial holding company which has
as its umbrella regulator the Federal Reserve Board. Functional regulation of the financial holding company’s
separately regulated subsidiaries will be conducted by their primary functional regulator. The GLB Act requires
“satisfactory” or higher Community Reinvestment Act compliance for insured depository institutions and their
financial holding companies in order for them to engage in new financial activities. The GLB Act provides a federal
right to privacy of non-public personal information of individual customers.




BNB’s deposits are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporaticn (“FDIC”). As a national bank,
BNB is supervised and examined by the Office of the Compiroller of the Currency.

A substzntial portion of the Company’s cash revenue is derived from dividends paid by its subsidiary bank.
These dividends are subject to various regulatory restrictions as summarized in Note 15 of the Company’s
Consolidated Financial Statements.

A furdamental principle underlying the Federal Reserve’s supervision and regulation of bank holding
companies is that bank holding companies should be a source of managerial and financial strength to their subsidiary
banks. Subsidiary banks in turn are to be operated in a manner that protects the overall soundness of the institution
and the safety of deposits. Bank regulators can take various remedial measures to deal with banks and bank holding
companies that fail to meet legal and regulatory standards.

The Financial Reform, Recovery and Enforcement Act of 1989 provides that 2 holding company’s
contrelied insurcc. depository institutions are liable for any loss incurred by the FDIC in connection with the default
of any FDIC-assisted transaction involving an affiliated insured bank or savings association. The Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation Improvement Act of 1991 created five capital-based supervisory levels for banks and requires
hank holding companies to guarantee compliance with capital restoration plans of undercapitalized insured
depository affiiiatss.

The moncztary policies of regulatory authorities, including the Federal Reserve Board and the FDIC, have a
significant effect on the operating results of banks and bank holding companies. The nature of future monetary
policies and the effect of such policies on the future business and earnings of Belmont and its subsidiary bank cannot
be predicted.

FOREIGN OPERATIONS

Belment Bancorp. has no foreign operations.
ITEM 2-PROPERTIES
DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTIES

BND ope:ates a network of twelve full service branches located in Belmont, Harrison and Tuscarawas
Counties in Ohio and Ohio County in West Virginia. In addition to its main office in the Woodsdale section of
Wheeling, Wes? Virginia, BNB operates a branch in the Elm Grove section of Wheeling. Locations in Belmont
County, Ohic include three branch offices in St. Clairsville and offices in Bridgeport, Lansing, Shadyside, and
Bellaire. BNB’s West Main Street office in downtown St. Clairsville serves as the location for the Company’s and
the Bank’s executive, administrative, finance and operations functions. The Harrison County branch is located in
Cadiz, Ohio. Ir Tuscarawas County, Ohio, BNB operates two full service offices and one automated facility in New
Philadelphia, Onio.

All offices are owned by BNB except for the Ohio Valley Mall and Belliaire offices. The land for the Elm
Grove office is also leased. The Ohio Valley Mall office lease expires in 2003 and contains a five year renewal
option; BNB intends to exercise the renewal option during 2003. The Bellaire office lease expires in 2007 and
contains a ten year renewal option. The land lease for the Eim Grove office expires in 2005 and provides for four,
five year renewzl options.

ITEM 3-LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

During December 2001, the Company reached a comprehensive legal settlement wherein five lawsuits
were resolved, including a costly derivative action. Proceeds from the settlement totaled $6.3 million and were
recorded during the first and second quarters of 2002. Each case, concluded as a result of the comprehensive
settlement, was either directly or indirectly related to losses incurred by the Company during 1998 and 1999 for
commercial loans to Schwartz Homes, Inc., formerly the Bank’s largest commercial borrower, and an interim-
lending program ofered by the Bank to customers of Schwartz Homes, Inc. Schwariz Homes, Inc. filed bankruptcy

3




during 1999 and was subsequently liquidated. All payments received and recorded by the Company for the
comprehensive settlement, except for $675,000 received for its fidelity bond policy, were net of plaintiff’s attorneys
fees and costs; those fees and costs were approximately $3.6 million. Mr. James J. Fleagane, the shareholder who
commenced the derivative action on behalf of the Company, filed a motion in the derivative litigation seeking
compensation for his time spent prosecuting the case. The Circuit Court of Ohio County, West Virginia, denied his
request. In May 2002, Mr. Fleagane filed a Petition for Appeal to the West Virginia Supreme Court of Appeals, and
in January 2003, the Court agreed to hear the appeal. The Company intends to vigorously oppose Mr. Fleagane’s
request for payment. :

In February 2001, Belmont National Bank filed a foreclosure action in the Common Pleas Court of
Harrison County, Ohio against Martin Snyder, et al., for loans Snyder had with the Bank. In May 2001, Snyder filed
a lender hability counterclaim against the Bank which claimed that through certain actions the Bank and its
representatives caused Snyder’s business to fail and thereby “deprived defendants of their unfettered will.” Snyder
sought compensatory damages in excess of $25,000 and punitive damages to be determined at trial. In December
2002, the parties agreed to settle this matter, and appropriate documentation is pending to formally dismiss the case.

In October 2001 in a civil action in the Circuit Court of Ohio County, West Virginia, Manuel A. Velez,
DDS filed a pro se complaint against the Company doing business as Belmont National Bank with respect to the
terms of refinancing of a commercial loan. The complaint sought recission of the contract, compensatory damages
in excess of $50,000, and punitive damages of $200,000, together with fees and costs. The Company filed a timely
answer and a counterclaim for a complaint on a promissory note as against the pro se plaintiff. This matter was
scheduled for trial on November 19, 2002. The Company filed a motion for sutnmary judgment to dismiss the case,
and a hearing was scheduled for November 15, 2002. At that time, the matter was dismissed in favor of the Bank’s
motion for summary judgment, and the dismissal judgment was entered in the Chio County Clerk’s Office, West
Virginia, on February 18, 2003,

In October 2001 in the United States District Court for the Northern District of Ohio, an action was filed by
BVM Hospitality, Inc., Kiran Patel, Raman Patel and Chandu Patel against Belmont National Bank, four of its
directors and one of its officers, The claim alleged that the Bank declined to extend credit based upon national
origin. Plaintiffs sought $628,508 in compensatory damages and $500,000 in punitive damages. On October 10,
2002, the Ohio Civil Rights Commission filed a complaint against the Bank arising out of the same matter pending
in the Federal Court. An administrative hearing originally set on that matter on April 8, 2003, was stayed pending
the outcome of the civil matter. With discovery complete, both sides filed motions for summary judgment in the
civil action. While the motions remained pending, on February 14, 2003, the parties agreed to settle all claims.
Plaintiffs also agreed to take steps to withdraw or terminate the proceedings instituted by the Ohio Civil Rights
Commission. As the parties finalized the settlement, and upon notice of the settlement, on February 20, 2003 the
Court dismissed the civil case. The administrative action has not yet been dismissed.

Management believes, based on the advice of counsel, that no accrual for loss is necessary at year-end
2002. However, losses were reasonably possible and subsequent to December 31, 2002, settlements were reached in
all cases (except for Mr. Fleagane’s Petition for Appeal previously described) resulting in charges during the first
quarter of 2003 of approximately $50,000.

ITEM 4-SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year covered
by this report.




PART I

ITEM 5-MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT'S COMMON STOCK AND RELATED SHAREHOLDERS'
MATTERS

The nurnr ber of shareholders of record for the Company's stock as of March 14, 2003 was 1,044. The
closing price of Belmont stock on March 13, 2003 was $5.20 per share.

Belmont Bancorp.'s common stock has a par value of $0.25 and, since October 1994, has been traded on
the Nasdaq SmallCap market.

High and low market prices and dividend information for the past two years for Belmont’s common stock
are depicted in the following tables.

2002 2001

Dividend Dividend

Quarter High Low per Share Quarter High Low per Share
1st 35.000 $3.550 $0.000 Ist $4.625  $3.063 $0.000
2nd $4.990 $3.950 0.660 2nd $4.120  $3.500 0.000
3rd $4.980 $3.510 0.000 3rd $3.820  $2.400 0.000
4th $4.720 $3.550 0.000 4th $4.250  $2.400 0.000
Total $0.000 Total $0.000

Information regarding the limitations on dividends available to be paid can be located in Note 15 of the
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in the Company’s financial statements beginning on page F-1 (Item
8).

Treasury stock is accounted for using the cost method. There were 44,792 shares held in treasury on
December 31, 202 and 51,792 shares on December 31, 2001.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table provides information as of December 31, 2002 with respect to shares of Belmont
Bancorp. common stock that may be issued under our existing equity compensation plan.

@) [ ©
Number of securities
remaining available for
Number of securities to be | Weighted-average exercise future issuance under
issued upon exercise of price of outstanding equity compensation plans
outstanding options, options, warrants and (excluding securities
Pian Category warrants and rights rights reflecied in column (a))
Equity compensation plans
approved by sec ity
helders (1) 301,500 $3.74 691,500
Equity compensation plans
aot epproved by security
holders (2) 0 0 0
Total 301,500 $3.74 691,500

{1) Consists of tze options issued under the Belmont Bancorp. 2001 Stock Opition Plan approved by shareholders at
the annual meeting held May 21, 2001. See Note 24 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional
information.

{2) There are no equity compensation plans not approved by security holders.
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ITEM 6 - SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The data presented herein should be read in conjunction with the audited Consolidated Financial

Statements beginning on page F-1.

Consolidated Five Year Summary of Operations
For the Years Ended December 31, 2002, 2001, 2000, 1999 and 1998
($000s except per share data)

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

Interest and dividend income $15277  $18,131  $19,137  $25,870 $30,787
Interest expense 6,360 9,810 10,702 15,609 16,480
Net interest income 8,917 8,321 8,435 10,261 14,307
Provision for loan losses (1,029) (600) 242 15,877 12,882
Net interest income after

provision for loan losses 9,946 8,921 8,193 (5,616) 1,425
Securities gains (losses) 27 (120) 4 (880) 1,338
Trading gains (losses) - - - (10) 62
Gain on sale of real estate - - - - 383
Gain (loss) on sale of loans and loans held for sale 278 281 (40) 341 144
Interest on federal tax refund - - 256 - -
Legal settlements 6,311 - - - -
Other operating income 2,084 2,328 2,163 2,222 2,039
Operating expenses 11,839 12,690 9,870 12,642 9,496
Income (loss) before income taxes 6,807  (1,280) 706 (16,585) (4,105)
Income taxes (benefit) 810 (869) (680)  (5,554) (2,186)
Net income (loss) $5,997 (3415) $1,386 ($11,031) ($1,919)
Basic and diluted eamings (loss) per common share (1) $0.54  (50.04) $0.16  ($2.11)  (80.3D
Cash dividend declared per share (1) - - - $0.120  $0.385
Book value per common share (1) $3.13 $2.33 $2.31 $1.83 $4.86
Total loans $130,759 $115,674 $129,876 3$166,979 $208,186
Total assets 289,468 288,856 281,788 315,767 438,283
Total deposits 230,243 238,486 231,686 255,432 304,351
Long term borrowings 21,050 20,000 20,000 20,000 91,401
Total shareholders' equity 34,757 25,846 25,602 11,231 25,364

(1) Restated for stock dividends paid during 1998.




ITEM 7-MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The data presented in this discussion should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial
statements beginnir:g on page F-1.

FORWARD-LOCKING STATEMENTS

In addition to historic information, this report, as well as the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
may contain forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995,
Forward-looking statements are statements other than statements of historical fact, including statements regarding
the Company's expectations, beliefs, hopes, intentions or strategies regarding the future. In some cases, forward-
looking statements can be identified by the use of words such as "may,” "will,” "expects,” "should,” "believes,"
"plans,” "anticipates,” "estimates,” "predicts," "potential," "continue," or other words of similar meaning. Forward-
looking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from
those ciscussed in, or implied by, the forward-locking statements. Readers should not place undue reliance on
forward-looking statements, which reflect management's opinion only as of the date on which they were made.
Except as required by law, the Company disclaims any obligation to review cr update these forward-looking
statements to reflect events or circumstances as they occur. Readers should also carefully review any risk factors
described in Company reports filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

({1

Various statements made in this Report concerning the manner in which the Company intends to conduct
its future operations, and potential trends that may impact future results of operations, are forward-looking
statements. The Company may be unable to realize its plans and objectives due to various important factors,
including, but not limited to, the factors described below, These and other factors are more fully discussed
elsewhere in this Report.

e The Company has recognized substantial loan losses in past years, principally related to loans made
under the direction of prior management. The volume of classified loans remains high relative to the
Company’s peers. While the Company has created what it believes are appropriate loan loss reserves,
the Company could incur significant additional loan losses in future periods, particularly if general
economic conditions or conditions in particular industries in which its loans are concentrated
deteriorzte.

o The Corapany is subject to increasingly vigorous and intense competition from other banking institutions
and from various financial institutions and other nonbank or non-regulated companies or firms that engage
in similer activities. Many of these institutions have significantly greater resources than the Company.

e Certain credit, market, operational, liquidity and interest rate risks associated with the Company’s business
operaticns as well as changes in business and economic conditions, competition, fiscal and monetary
policies and legislation could impact the future operations and performance of the Company.




APPLICATION OF CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Belmont’s consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States and follow general practices within the industry in which it operates.
Application of these principles requires management to make estimates, assurnptions, and judgments that affect the
amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. These estimates, assumptions, and judgments
are based on information available as of the date of the financial statements; accordingly, as this information
changes, the financial statements could reflect different estimates, assumptions, and judgments. Certain policies
inherently have a greater reliance on the use of estimates, assumptions, and judgments and as such have a greater
possibility of producing results that could be materially different than originaily reported. Estimates, assumptions,
and judgments are necessary when assets and liabilities are required to be recorded at fair value, when a decline in
the value of an asset not carried on the financial statements at fair value warrants an impairment write-down or
valuation reserve to be established, or when an asset or liability needs to be recorded contingent upon a future event,
Carrying assets and liabilities at fair value inherently results in more financia! statement volatility. The fair values
and the information used to record valuation adjustments for certain assets and liabilities are based either on quoted
market prices or are provided by other third-party sources, when available. When third-party information is not
available, valuation adjustments are estimated in good faith by management.

The most significant accounting policies followed by the Company are presented in Note 1 to the
consolidated financial statements. These policies, along with the disclosure presented in the other financial
statement notes and in management’s discussion and analysis of the financial condition and results of operations of
the Company, provide information on how significant assets and liabilities are valued in the financial statements and
how those values are determined. Based on the valuation techniques used and the sensitivity of financial statement
amounts to the methods, assumptions, and estimates underlying those amounts, management has identified the
determination of the allowance for loan losses and the valuation of deferred fzderal tax assets to be accounting areas
that require the most subjective or complex judgments, and as such could be most subject to revision as new
information becomes available.

The allowance for loan losses represents management’s estimate of probable loan losses inherent in the
loan portfolio. Determining the amount of the allowance for loan losses is considered a critical accounting estimate
because it requires significant judgment and the use of estimates related to the amount and timing of expected future
cash flows on impaired loans, estimated losses on pools of homogeneous loans based on historical loss experience,
and consideration of current economic trends and conditions, all of which may be susceptible to significant change.
The loan portfolio also represents nearly half of the assets on the conseclidated balance sheet.

The valuation of deferred federal tax assets represents management’s estimate that the Company will have
sufficient taxable income in future years to utilize these assets. The deferred federal tax assets at December 31,
2002 are largely comprised of net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards to future periods. The Company’s
ability to use these assets is based on its ability to generate taxable income in sufficient amounts to use the operating
losses and tax credits before the applicable expiration dates. Forecasting taxable income in future periods requires
the use of estimates for loan, investment and deposit levels, loan losses, noninterest income and expenses, the
interest rates applicable to earning assets and interest paying liabilities, and unforeseen events that could have a
material impact on the Company’s earnings prospects. Actual resuits in future periods may vary significantly from
the forecasts prepared as of the date of the financial statements.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Summary

Belmont Bancorp. reported net income of $5,997,000 for the year ended December 31, 2002, or $0.54 per
common share, compared to a loss of $415,000, or a loss of $0.04 per common share for the year ended December
31, 2001. The Company posted fourth quarter 2002 net income of $1,492,000, or $0.13 per common share,
compared to a loss of $293,000, or a loss of $0.03 per common share for the fourth quarter of 2001. For the year
ended 2000, net income was $1,386,000, or §.16 per common share.




Early in 2002, the Company resolved a number of legal actions resulting in gross settlement proceeds
before expenses of $6,311,000. Exclusive of the settlement proceeds and related expenses, the Company would
have reported net ea:nings after related taxes of $2,602,000, or $0.23 per common share, for the year ended 2002.

The Company’s efforts to improve certain problem loans resulted in substantial recoveries enabling the
Bank to reduce its Allowance for Loan Losses. The Company recorded a $529,000 reduction in its Allowance for
Loan Losses during “he fourth quarter of 2002. For the year ended 2002, the Company’s reduction to its Allowance
for Loan Losses totaled $1,029,000. After recognition of related federal tax expense, these actions contributed
$349,000 to fourth quarter net income and $679,000 to net income for the year ended 2002. Additional information
is discussed below under the heading, “Provision and Allowance for Loan Losses”™.

Belmont Bencorp. was formally released from its regulatory agreement with the Federal Reserve Bank of
Cleveland during December 2002. This action, in addition to the termination in November 2002 of the Consent
Order and 2 Memorendum of Understanding between Belmont National Bank and the Office of the Comptroller of
the Currency, corplztely eliminates all regulatory agreements imposed on the Company and Bank since 1999.

Aided by lcw interest rates during 2002, the Company continued its balance sheet restructuring and
reduced the amount >f tax-exempt securities held in its investment portfolio. This restructure is part of a plan to
ensure that the Company can utilize net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards in future years. As a result, the
Company and Bank =liminated a deferred tax asset valuation allowance of $1,000,000 previously established in
1999. The elimination of the deferred tax asset valuation allowance also positively affected the Company’s earnings
and contributed $1,000,000 to net income during the fourth quarter and year ended 2002.

The Company faced unusually high operating expenses during each of the last three years. In particular,
large legal expenses, consulting fees, deposit insurance costs, and cther insurance costs negatively impacted
profitability. Legal “ees and legal settlement expenses were $1.7 million for the year ended 2002, $3.0 million for
the year ended 2C01. and $1.2 million for the year ended 2000. As more fully described above and under Item 3-
Legal Proceedings, the Company has settled all previously pending lawsuits. Also, as a result of the improvement in
its regulatory risk profile, the Company will incur lower FDIC insurance premiums and lower regulatory
examination fees during 2003.

The following table depicts the Company’s performance for the past three years.

($000s) except per saare data 2002 2001 2006
Income (loss) before income taxes $6,807 ($1,280) $706
Net income (loss} $5,997 (3415) $1,386

Basic eamings {loss’ per

common share $0.54 ($0.04) $0.16
Return on average assets 2.10% -0.15% 0.49%
Return on average total equity 19.82% -1.57% 7.77%

Net Interest Incom:

The primary source of the Company’s revenue is net interest income. Net interest income is the difference
between interest income on earning assets such as loans and securities, and interest expense paid on liabilities such
as deposits and borrowings. Net interest income is affected by the general level of interest rates, changes in interest
rates and by changes in the amount and composition of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities, The
relative performance of the lending and deposit-raising functions is frequently measured by two statistics—net
Interest margin and net interest rate spread. The net interest margin is determined by dividing fully-taxable
equivalent net interest income by average interest-earning assets. The net interest rate spread is the difference
between the average fully-taxable equivalent yield earned on interest-earning assets and the average rate paid on
interest-bearing liabilities. The net interest margin is generally greater than the net interest rate spread due to the
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additional income earned on those assets funded by non-interest-bearing liabilities, or free funding, such as demand
deposits and shareholders’ equity.

The Consolidated Average Balance Sheets and Analysis of Net Interest Income compare interest revenue
and interest-earning assets outstanding with interest cost and liabilities outstanding for the years ended December
31, 2002, 2001, and 2000, and compute net interest income, net interest margin and net interest rate spread for each
period. All three of these measures are reported on a taxable equivalent basis computed using a 34% effective
federal tax rate. Loan fees included in interest income were $513,000 in 2002, $521,000 in 2001, and $190,000 in
2000. Nonaccrual loans and loans held for sale have been included in the average loan balances. Average
outstanding securities balances are based upon amortized cost excluding any unrealized gains or losses on securities
available for sale.

Consolidated Average Balance Sheets and Analysis of Net Interest Income
For the Years Ended December 31 (Taxable Equivalent Basis) (3000's)

2002 2001 2000
Average Average | Average Average | Average Average
Out- Revenue/  Yield/ Out- Revenue/  Yield/ Out- Revenue/  Yield/
standing Cost Rate standing Cost Rate standing Cost Rate
Assets
Interest-earning assets:
Loans $120,484 $9,009 7.48% $121,238  $10,639 8.78%  $143,012 $12,240 8.56%
Securities:
Taxable 108,728 5,205 4.79% 82,332 5,008 6.16% 66,038 4,479  6.78%
Exempt from income tax 18,003 1,272 7.07% 39,199 2,705 6.90% 44,581 3,000 6.93%
Federal funds sold 17,173 275 1.60% 17,940 634  3.53% 6,122 391 6.3%%
Total interest-earning assets 264,388 15,761 5.96% 260,709 19046 731% 259,753 20,200 7.78%
Cash and due from banks 8,532 9,255 9,483
Other assets 17,222 23,161 26,255
Market value depreciation
of securities available for sale (€1))] (1,580) (7,382)
Allowance for loan loss (5,206) (6,586) (8,046)
Total Assets 284,905 284,759 280,063
Liabilities
Interest bearing liabilities:
Interest checking 27,570 242 0.88% 25,137 498 1.98% 24,464 623  2.55%
Savings 89,045 1,614 1.81% 69,837 1,851  2.65% 68,652 2,231 3.25%
Other time deposits 86,097 3,558 4.13% 113,902 6,424  5.64% 112,605 6,311 5.60%
Other borrowings 21,380 946 4.42% 21,266 1,037 4.88% 29,682 1,537 S.18%
Total interest-bearing liabilities 224,092 6,360 2.84% 230,142 9,810 4.26% 235,403 10,702 4.55%
Demand deposits 28,277 25,457 24,749
Other liabilities 2,276 2,753 2,084
Total liabilities 254,645 258,352 262,236
Shareholders' Equity 30,260 26,407 17,827
Liabilities & Shareholders' Equity 284,905 284,759 280,063
Net interest income
margin on a taxable equivalent basis 9,401 3.56% 9,236 3.54% 9,498 3.66%
Net interest rate spread 3.12% 3.04% 3.23%
Interest-bearing liabilities
to interest-earning assets 84.76% 88.28% 90.63%
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The following table shows changes in taxable-equivalent interest income, interest expense, and
net interest income due to volume and rate variances for major categories of earning assets and interest-
bearing liabilities. The change in interest not solely due to changes in volume or rates has been
consistently allocated in proportion to the absolute dollar amount of the change in each and is reflected
as the mix.

Analysis of Net Ir terest Income
Changes

{Taxable Equivaleat Basis) ($000's)

2002 Compared to 2001 2001 Compared to 2000
Volume  Yield Mix Total Volume Yield Mix Total

Increase (decrease) in interest income:

Loans (866) ($1,574) $10  ($1,630) ($1,864) 3310 (%47) ($1,601)

Securities:

Taxable 1,625 (1,127)  (361) 137 1,105 (414) (102) 589
Exempt from income taxes (1,463) 65 (35) (1,433) 373  (14) 2 (385)

Federal funds sold (27) (347) 15 (359) 755 (175) (33D 243
Tetal interest income change 69 (2,983 (371) (3,285 (377) (293) (484) (1,154)
Increase (decrease) in interest expense:

Interest checking 48 277 27 (256) 17 (138) (5) (126)

Savings 509 (585) (16l (237) 39 (411) (@) (379)

Other time deposits (1,568) - (1,717) 419  (2,866) 73 40 0 113

Other borrowings 6 (96) )] [C2Y) (436) (90) 26 (500)
Total iaterest expense change (1,005) (2,675) 230 (3,450) 307) (599 14 (892)
Increase (decrease) in net interest
income on a taxable equivalent basis $1,074 ($308) (3601) $165 ($70) 3306 (3498) (8262)
Decrease in taxable equivalent

adiuvsiment 431 148
Net interest income change $596 ($114)

Througtout 2002, yields or U.S. Treasury securities across the maturity horizon remained low
relative to historical levels. The Federal Open Market Committee (the “FOMC”) maintained a very
accomimodative stance to aid the economic recovery. In November 2002, the FOMC reduced its
targeted federal funds rate by 0.50% to 1.25%. This followed several federal funds rate cuts during
2001 when the targeted federal funds rate fell from 6.50% at the beginning of 2001 to 1.75% by the end
of 2001, Likewise, the prime-lending rate fell from $.50% at the beginning of 2001 to 4.25% by
Novemper 2002. Changing interest rates impact the Company through loan refinancing activity,
reinvestment opgortunities in loans and investments, and financing costs on its deposit base and other
borrowings.

The taxable equivalent yield on earning assets fell to 5.96% for the year ended 2002 compared
to 7.31% in 200, a decline of 135 basis points. The yield on earning asset in 2000 was 7.78%. The
cost of interest-tearing liabilities fell to 2.84% for the year ended 2002 compared to 4.26% in 2001, a
decline in the cost of interest-bearing liabilities outpaced the decline in yields on earning assets during
2002, the Company’s net interest margin improved slightly to 3.56% in 2002 from 3.54% in 2001. The
net in‘erest margin for 2000 was 3.66%.

The Ccmpany's taxable equivalent net interest income increased 1.8% to $9,401,000 in 2002
from $9,236,000 in 2001, Average total interest-earning assets increased to $264.4 million in 2002
from $260.7 million in 2001 and $260.0 million in 2000. The most notable change in the mix of
earning assets during 2002 compared to 2001 was a decline in tax-exempt securities to an average
balance of $18.0 million in 2002 compared to an average balance of $39.2 miltion during 2001.
Lower interest rates resulting in improved bond prices enabied the Company to sell approximately $29
million in long-"erm tax-exempt bonds to reinvest in taxable investments during 2002. This was an

[anry
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important part of a plan to enable the Company to utilize net operating loss carryforwards and tax
credits in future years.

Average total interest-bearing liabilities fell to $224.1 million during 2002 compared to $230.1
million during 2001. Depositors were reluctant to extend time deposit maturities due to low interest
rates. Consequently, the average deposit mix shifted and average time deposits fell to $86.1 million
during 2002 compared to $113.9 in 2001. Average savings deposits increased to $89.0 million during
2002 from $69.8 million in 2001. This change in deposit mix positively impacted Company’s overall
cost of funds.

Other Operating Income

Changes in various categories of other income are depicted in the following table:

(Expressed in thousands) 2002 Change 2001 Change 2000
Trust fees $477 -19.6% $593 41.5% $419
Service charges on deposits 918 0.0% 918 8.3% 848
Legal settiements 6,311 na - na -
Interest on federal tax refund - na - -100.0% 256
Earnings on bank-owned life insurance 64 -71.4% 224 -3.0% 231
Gain (loss) on sale of loans and

loans held for sale 278 -1.1% 281 802.5% (40)
Other income (individually less than

1% of total income) 625 5.4% 593 -10.8% 665

Subtotal 8,673 232.4% 2,609 9.7% 2,379
Securities gains (losses) 27 122.5% (120) -3100.0% 4

Total 38,700 249.5% $2,489 4.4% $2,383

Included in noninterest income for the year ended 2002 was $6.3 million in proceeds from legal
settlements. During December 2001, the Company reached a comprehensive legal settlement wherein the Company
resolved five lawsuits, including a costly derivative action. Each case, concluded as a result of the comprehensive
settlement, was either directly or indirectly related to losses incurred by the Company during 1998 and 1999 for
commercial loans to Schwartz Homes, Inc., formerly the Bank’s largest commercial borrower, and an interim-
lending program offered by the Bank to customers of Schwartz Homes, Inc. Schwartz Homes, Inc. filed bankruptcy
during 1999 and was subsequently liquidated.

As a result of the settlement during the first quarter of 2002, the Company received a pre-tax payment from
its former independent audit firm in the amount of $2.2 million and a pre-tax payment of $1.7 million settling claims
against certain current and former directors of the Company. The settlement concluded during April 2002 when the
Bank received the last payment of the settlement from Progressive Insurance, its former carrier for directors and
officers liability insurance and fidelity bond insurance. The gross amount of Progressive’s payment to the Company
was $2.4 million. All payments received and recorded by the Company for the comprehensive settlement, except
for $675,000 received from Progressive for its fidelity bond policy, were net of plaintiff’s attorneys fees and costs;
those fees and costs were approximately $3.6 million. Operating results for the third and fourth quarters of 2002
were not affected by this settlement.

Trust fees declined 19.6% to $477,000 for 2002 compared to $593,000 for the year ended 2001. The
overall decline in the valuation of the stock market impacts trust fees since most fees are assessed based on the
market value of assets held in the trust accounts. Also, a trust with assets of $9 million was closed during the second
quarter of 2002. Trust fees increased to $593,000 in 2001, up 41.5% from $419,000 in 2000. The increase was
primarily due to an increase in the service charge schedule for trust accounts effective beginning with the quarterly
fees accrued on June 30, 2001.
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Service charges on deposits totaled $918,000 for the year ended 2002, unchanged from 2001. Service
charges on deposits increased 8.3% to $918,000 in 2001 compared to $848,000 in 2000. This was principally due to
an increase in overdraft charges and an increase in activity service charges on commercial demand deposit accounts
resulting from higher usage of bank services and a lower earnings credit rate.

During 2€00, the Company recorded $256,000 in interest earned on federal tax refunds for taxes paid in
previous years for :1et operating losses carried back to those years.

Earnings on bank-owned life insurance policies declined to $64,000 for the year ended 2002 from $224,000
in 2001 and $231,000 in 2000. During December 2001, the Company redeemed approximately $3.1 million in
bank-owned life insurance policies. This represented all of the Company’s bank-owned life insurance policies
except for those providing a life-insurance benefit for retirees and one uninsurable officer.

During 2€01 and 2002, the Company’s mortgage lending volume increased due to refinancing activity
related to lower mortgage interest rates and new correspondent mortgage lending relationships established with
other financial inst tutions. Through these relationships the Bank provides underwriting and documentation
preparation for the correspondent, and in some instances, purchases the mortgage loans originated by the
correspondent for subsequent sale in the secondary market. The gain on sale of loans and loans held for sale during
the year ended 2002 totaled $278,000 and included $166,000 in capitalized mortgage servicing rights for loans sold
in the secondary market. During 2001, the gain on sale of ioans and loans held for sale totaled $281,000 and
included $24 1,000 in capitalized mortgage servicing rights. No servicing rights were capitalized during the year
2000.

Other income includes, among other miscellaneous items, commissions and fees unrelated to loan
origination, brokerage fees, loan documentation preparation fees, rental income, mortgage servicing income, and
check printing charges. Other income increased 5.4% to $625,000 for the year ended 2002 compared to $593,000
for 20C1 and $665,000 for 2000. Contributing to this increase were increases in mortgage servicing fees, safe
deposit box rents and commissions on ATM transactions.

During 202, the Company sold approximately $29 million in tax-exempt municipal bonds for an aggregate
loss 0f $212,000. Other gains realized through investment sales resulted in net securities gains of $27,000 for the
year ended 2002. 'n addition, approximately $17 million in bonds were called or matured during 2002. The sale of
the tax-exempt muicipal bonds was a continuation of the Company’s efforts to minimize interest rate risk exposure
in long-term investments and to increase taxable income. The Company continues to have sizable operating tax loss
and tax credit carryforwards. Since December 31, 2001, the Company has reduced its tax-exempt municipal bond
portfolio from approximately $29.6 million to $3.5 million at December 31, 2002. Securities losses recorded during
2001 totaled $120,000 and included a writedown in book value of $113,000 for a financial institution stock owned
by the Company. The Company’s basis in the stock, Progress Financial Corporation, was considered impaired by
management given financial problems experienced by that corporation.
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Operating Expenses

The table below details the dollar amounts of and percentage changes in various categories of expense for
the three years ended 2002, 2001, and 2000:

(Expressed in thousands) 2002 %change 2001 % change 2000
Salaries $3,922 5.7% $3,710 11.6% $3,323
Employee benefits 947 10.8% 855 15.1% 743
Net occupancy expenses of premises 882 -2.0% 900 7.3% 839
Equipment expenses 909 0.2% 907 4.9% 865
Legal fees 1,057 -62.7% 2,836 146.0% 1,153
Legal settlement expenses 635  356.8% 139  1058.3% 12
Taxes other than payroll and real estate 197 -12.8% 226 841.7% 24
Supplies and printing 206 3.0% 200 21.2% 165
Insurance, including federal deposit insurance 586 -0.7% 590 -23.8% 774
Amortization and impairment of mortgage servicing rights 271 84.4% 147 1370.0% _ 10
Consulting expense 124 -46.6% 232 66.9% 139
Examinations and audits 458 2.7% 446 24.2% 359
Advertising 227 3.2% 220 57.1% 140
Other (individually. less than 1% of total income) 1,418 10.6% 1,282 -3.2% 1,324
Total $11,839 -6.7% $12,690 28.6% $9,870

The employee count at the end of December 2002 totaled 132 full time equivalent employees (“FTEs”),
down from 137 FTEs at the end of 2001 and 2000. The increase in salaries and wages for the year ended 2002
compared to 2001 was principally the result of incentive compensation paid during 2002 and merit increases.
Compensation cost associated with the grant of stock options was $33,000 for the year ended 2002 and $92,000 for
the year ended 2001.

Employee insurance benefits included as part of employee benefits expense increased approximately
$50,000 for the year ended 2002 compared to 2001, an increase of approximately 14%. Employee insurance
benefits costs increased $46,000 for the the year ended 2001 compared to 2000, an increase of approximately 15%.
The Company also recorded benefit expense totaling $88,000 for a profit sharing contribution for its employees
during 2002. No profit sharing was provided during 2001 or 2000.

Employee benefits for the year ended 2002 also included approximately $55,000 in costs associated with
expenses related to former executives of the Company in connection with the comprehensive legal settlement
previously described. These costs included payroll taxes associated with the payment of various compensation plans
and a contribution to the Company’s '401(k) plan for the benefit of one of the former executives. However, these
one time costs were offset by the elimination of benefit liabilities previously recorded for discontinued deferred
compensation programs for directors and the unused portion of moving expenses previously accrued for a former
executive.

Legal fees decreased to $1,057,000 for the year ended 2002 compared to $2,836,000 for 2001
principally as a result of the settlement of the derivative action previously discussed. The Company expects
substantially lower legal fees for 2003. Legal fees for 2000 were $1,153,000 as a result of the derivative action,
lending and loan collection efforts, regulatory matters, and other civil litigation.

Legal settlements expense for the year ended 2002 totaled $635,000 and included $179,000 in settlement
charges related to the comprehensive legal settlement previously described. The remaining settlement charges relate
to various claims against the Company described under Item 3 - “Legal Proceedings” and in the Company’s Annual
Report to Shareholders and Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001.
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Taxes (other than payroll and real estate taxes) were $197,000 in 2002, down from $226,000 in 2001. The
decline was largely due to refunds of franchise tax. BNB is subject to corporate franchise tax in the State of Ohio
based on its capital base. The increase in the BNB'’s capital base resulting from the sale of common stock during
2000 resulted in substantially higher franchise tax cost in 2001 compared to 2000.

Insurance, including FDIC costs, were down slightly for the year ended 2002 compared to 2001. The
Company expects tc realize substantial reductions in FDIC costs beginning in 2003 due to improvements in the
Company and Bank s regulatory risk profile. BNB’s FDIC deposit insurance and other insurance costs declined to
$590,000 in 2001 compared to $774,000 in 2000 due to the improvement in the Bank’s capital ratios during 2000
which reduced the deposit insurance cost beginning in January 2001. Insurance costs in 2000 were significantly
impacted by the Bark’s regulatory risk profile due to loan losses incurred during 1999 as well as other factors. The
cost of fidelity bond insurance and directors’ and officers’ liability insurance also increased significantly from 2000
to 2001.

Amortization of mortgage servicing rights totaled $271,000 for the year ended 2002 compared to
$147,000 for 20C1. Amortization expense included $109,00C during the third quarter of 2002 to establish a
valuation allowance to reduce the carrying amount of mortgage servicing rights to its estimated fair value. At
December 31, 2002, these rights were valued at $209,000 and represented a 47 basis point capitalization rate on
a mortgage servicing portfolio of approximately $66 million.

Mortgage loan refinancing activity accelerated rapidly during 2001 and 2002 due to the decline in
home mortgage interest rates. The volume of mortgage loan originations also picked up considerably, and the
volume of loans serviced for the secondary market by BNB increased from $57.5 million at the end of 2001 to
$65.9 million at the 2nd of 2002. The Company sells many of its new mortgage loan originations in the
secondary market with servicing retained to eliminate interest rate risk associated with fixed rate, long-term
assets and to improve non-interest income.

Consulting expense declined $108,000 to $124,000 for the year ended 2002 compared to $232,000 in
2001. Consulting expense associated with litigation totaled $131,000 for the year ended 2001.

Examination and audit costs increased by $12,000 to $458,000 for the year ended 2002 compared $446,000
in 2001 and $359,0C0 in 2000. The increase from 2000 to 2001 was principally due to higher costs assessed by the
Bank’s regulators fo- its examinations and for audit costs associated with the Bank’s trust department. The
Company expects to realize a reduction in its regulatory examination fees beginning in 2003 because of its improved
regulatory risk profile.

Other expenses increased $136,000, or 10.6%, to $1,418,000 for the year ended 2002 compared
$1,282,000 for 2001. The increase was largely associated with an increase in loan collection expense of
$57,000 and a one time charge to data processing expense in the amount of $66,000 to fulfill a minimum
contract fee for trust account precessing upon termination of that contract.
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FINANCIAL CONDITION
Securities

The Company uses securities to generate interest and dividend revenue, to manage interest rate risk and to
provide liquidity to meet operating cash needs. The securities portfolio yield at December 31, 2002 was 4.70%. Net
unrealized gains in the securities portfolio at December 31, 2002 totaled $2,239,000, compared to net unrealized
losses of $2,088,000 at December 31, 2001. Management believes any unrealized losses within the investment
portfolio are temporary.

The maturities and yields of securities available for sale (excluding equity securities) at December 31, 2002
are detailed in the following table. The yields are expressed on a taxable equivalent basis. Maturities of mortgage-
backed securities and agency loan pools are based on estimated average life.

Over 10 Year

Maturity < 1 year 1-5 Year Maturity 6-10 Year Maturity Maturity Total
Expressed in thousands) Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount  Yield  Amount  Yield
. S. Treasury securities S 102 4.22% $ 1,073 3.39% § - - % - -8 1,175  3.46%
.S. Government agencies .
and corporations (b) - - 31,829 3.43% - - - - 31,829  343%
ates and political
subdivisions (a) 2,054 4.55% 17,716  4.46% 212 9.51% 3,656 7.33% 23,638  4.96%
orporate debt 1,501 4.09% 9,040  4.33% - - 2470 7.90% 13,011 4.98%
gency mortgage-backed
securities (b) 1,593 3.80% 24223 5.47% 4,621  5.28% 5,565  5.93% 36,002 5.44%
ollateralized mortgage ‘
obligations ) 1,090  4.41% 5240 5.89% $ - - 3,476 6.05% 9,806 5.78%
sset-backed securities - - 1,017 3.25% § - - - - 1,017 3.25%
Total fair value S 6,340  4.22% $ : 90,138 4.42% § 4,833  545% § 15,167  6.36% $ 116,478  4.70%
Amortized cost S 6,266 $ = 87,758 $ 4,803 $ 15,565 $ 114,392

(a) Maturities of mortgage-backed securities and agency loan pools are based on estimated average life.
{b) Taxable equivalent yields.

At December 31, 2002, the Company did not own any investments of a single issuer, the value of Wh]Ch
exceeded 10% of total shareholders’ equity, or $3,476,000.

Loans

The following table shows the history of commercial and consumer loans by major category at December 31:

(Expressed in thousands) 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
Commercial loans:
Real estate construction $3,856 $3,318 $12,856 $108 $135
Real estate mortgage 47,698 35,892 22,738 9,033 14,719
Commercial, financial

and agricultural 26,562 34,085 48,789 99,911 119,730

Total commercial loans $78,116 $73,295 $84,383 $109,052 $134,584




(Expressed in thoisands) 2002 2001 2000 1999 1958

Consumer loars:

Residential mortgage $49,536 $38,701 $40,794 $45,944 $56,364

Installment loans 2,677 2,870 3,832 9,315 14,483

Credit card and other consumer 430 808 867 823 1,021
Total consumer loans $52,643 $42,379 $45,493 $56,082 $71,868

Total ioans and leases $130,759 $115,674 $129,876 $165,134 $206,452

An analysis o maturity and interest rate sensitivity of business loans at the end of 2002 follows:

Under 1t05 Over 5
{Expressed in thotsands) 1 year Years Years Total
Domestic loans:
Real estate constriction - 873 $1,597 $2,186 $3,856
Real estate mortgage 23,950 18,611 4478 47,039
Commercial, financial
and agricultural 15,995 6,537 3,337 25,869
Total commerc:al loans (a) $40,018 $26,745 $10,001 $76,764
Under 1t05 Over 5
{Expressed in thousands) 1 year Years Years Total
Rate sensitivity:
Predetermined rate $1,422 $4,544 $9,512 $15,478
Floating or adjustanle rate 38,596 22,201 489 61,286
Total domestic commercial loans (a) $40,018 $26,745 $10,001 $76,764
Foreign loans 0 0 0 0

(a) does not include nonaccrual loans

Provision and Allowance for Loan Losses

The Company, as part of its philosophy of risk management, has established various credit policies and

procedures intended to minimize the Company's exposure to undue credit risk. Credit evaluations of borrowers are
performed to ensurc that loans are granted on a sound basis. In addition, care is taken to minimize risk by
diversifying among industries. The Bank has certain concentrations of credit, which are more fully described in
Note 14 of the Company’s financial statements beginning on page F-1. Management regularly monitors credit risk
through the periodic review of individual credits to ensure compliance with policies and procedures. Adequate
collateralization, contractual guarantees, and compensating balances are also utilized by management to mitigate
risk.

Management determines the appropriate level of the allowance for loan losses by regularly evaluating the
quality of the loan portfolio. The allowance is allocated to specific loans that exhibit above average credit loss
potential based upon their payment history and the borrowers' financial conditions. The adequacy of the allowance

17




for loan losses is evaluated based on an assessment of the probable losses incurred in the loan portfolio. The total
allowance is available to absorb losses from any segment of the portfolio. Management maintains a watch list of
substandard loans for monthly review. Although these loans may not be delinquent and may be adequately secured,
management believes that due to location, size, or past payment history, it is necessary to monitor these loans
regularly.

The evaluation of each element and the overall allowance are based on the size and current risk
characteristics of the loan portfolio and include an assessment of individual problem loans, actual loss experience,
current economic events in specific industries and geographical areas, including unemployment levels, and other
pertinent factors, including regulatory guidance and general economic conditions. While management considers the
allowance for loan losses to be adequate based on information currently available, future adjustments to the
allowance may be necessary due to changes in economic conditions and delinquencies or loss rates. In addition, the
allowance for loan losses is periodically reviewed by the bank regulatory agencies as an integral part of their
examination process. Based on their review, the agencies may require the Company to adjust the allowance for loan
losses based on their judgments about information available to them at the time of their review.

The allowance for loan losses totaled $4,287,000, or 3.3% of total loans at December 31, 2002. At the end
of the previous year, the allowance for loan losses was $5,310,000, or 4.6% of total loans. A reduction in the
allowance for loan losses in the amount of $1,029,000 was recorded during 2002 and is reflected as a negative loan
loss provision. Similarly, during 2001 the allowance for loan losses was reduced by $600,000. During 2001 and
2002, improvements to the Bank’s classifed loans and a reduction in principal from the receipt of liquidation
proceeds of a large commercial borrower enabled the Bank to reduce the allowance for loan losses. The provision
for loan losses recorded during 2000 was $242,000.

During the second quarter of 2001, the Company charged-off approximately $2 million in loans that, during
previous reporting periods, had specific reserves through an allocation of the allowance for loan loss.

The Bank recorded charge-offs during 1998 and 1999 principally related to Schwartz Homes, Inc. and retail
customers of that business. Schwartz Homes, Inc was placed into bankruptcy in June 1999 and was subsequently
liquidated. During 2000, the Bank received settlement proceeds from the bankruptcy of $3.2 million of which $1.2
million was applied to the remaining credit exposure for this relationship, $1.8 million was recorded as recoveries in
the allowance for loan losses, and the remainder was recorded as a recovery of legal expenses. Of the $2.3 million
in net charge-offs for the year ended December 31, 2000, $1.5 were related to the Schwartz Homes loan
relationship.

Management's allocation of the allowance for loan losses based on estimates of incurred loan losses is set
forth in the table below:

Allocation of the Allowance for Loan Losses

(Expressed in thousands) 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
Domestic:
Commercial, financial and agricultural 1,739 $1,682 $4.,096 34,692 $2,254
Commercial real estate 1,604 2,443 2,207 1,154 507
Residential mortgage 235 314 301 371 295
Consumer 15 90 94 3,485 2,329
Foreign - - - - -
Unallocated 694 781 969 - 90
Total $4,287 $5,310 $7,667 $9,702 $5,475

The unallocated portion of the allowance reflects estimated probable inherent but undetected losses within
the portfolio due to uncertainties in economic conditions, delays in obtaining information, including unfavorable
information about a borrower’s financial condition, the difficulty in identifying triggering events that correlate
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perfectly to subsequent loss rates, and risk factors that have not yet manifested themseives in loss allocation factors.
Historical loss experience data used to establish allocation estimates might not precisety correspond to the current

portfolio.

Loans outstanding as a percentage of each loan category are depicted in the following table:

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

Commercial, financial and agricultural 18.4% 27.1% 353% 58.6% 56.5%
Real estate-construciion 2.9% 2.9% 9.9% 0.1% 0.1%
Real estate-mortgag: 37.9% 33.4% 31.4% 27.8% 27.3%
Commercial real estate 36.5% - 31.0% 17.5% 5.5% 7.1%
Installment loans to individuals 2.4% 3.2% 3.6% 6.1% 7.5%
Obligations of political subdivisions in the U.S. 1.9% 2.4% 2.3% 1.9% 1.5%

Total 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

The following tables set forth the five-year historical and statistical information on the allowance for loan

1>sses:
{Expressed in thousands) 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
Balance as of January 1 $5,310 37,667 $9,702 $5,475 $4,134
Frovision for loan losses (1,029) (600) 242 15,877 12,882
Loans charged off:
Real estate 48 218 119 151 133
Commercial 291 2,134 812 8,435 178
Consumer 8 21 3,369 3,831 11,245
"otal loans charged-of 347 2,373 4,300 12,417 11,556
ecoveries of loans previously
charged-off:
Real estate 1 0 6 282 11
Commercial 180 262 136 73
Consumer 172 354 1,881 412 3
“"otal recoveries 353 616 2,023 767 15
Wet charge-offs (recoveries) (6) 1,757 2,277 11,650 11,541
Balance at December 31 $4,287 $5,310 $7,667 $9,702 $5,475
{Expressed in thousands) 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
Loans outstanding
at December 31 $130,759 $115,674 $129,876 $165,134 $206,452
Allowance as a percent of loans
outstanding 3.28% 4.59% 5.90% 5.88% 2.65%
Average loans $120,484 $121,238 $143,012 $193,295 $222,961
et charge-offs as a percent of
average loans 0.00% 1.45% 1.59% 6.03% 5.18%
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The following schedule depicts the five-year history of non-performing assets.

and 2001.

Deposits

three years:

(Expressed in thousands)

Average Deposits 2002 2001 2000
Demand $28,277 $25,457 $24,749
Interest bearing checking 27,570 25,137 24,464
Savings 89,045 69,837 68,652
Other time 74,894 97,562 95,608
Certificates-$100,000 and over 11,203 16,340 16,997
Total average deposits $230,989  $234,333  §230,470
Distribution of Average Deposits 2002 2001 2000
Demand 12.2% 10.9% 10.7%
Interest bearing checking 11.9% 10.7% 10.6%
Savings 38.6% 29.8% 29.8%
Other time 32.4% 41.6% 41.5%
Certificates-$100,000 and over 4.9% 7.0% 7.4%
Total 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

{Expressed in thousands) 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
Nonaccrual loans $3,171 $2,559 $8,518  $13,769  $8,569
Loans 90 days or more past due

but accruing interest 187 2 541 4
Other real estate owned 104 766 - -

Total $3,253 $2,850 $9,286  §$14310  $8,573
Non-performing loans as a % of the allowance

for loan loss 74.0% 48.2% 111.1% 141.9% 156.5%

In addition to the above schedule of non-performing assets, management prepares a watch list consisting of
loans which management has determined require closer monitoring to further protect the Company against loss. The
balance of loans classified by management as substandard due to delinquency and a change in financial position and
not included in non-performing assets was $13,149,000 and $15,684,000 at the December 31, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. No loans were classified as doubtful and not included in non-performing assets at December 31, 2002

Primarily, core deposits are used to fund interest-earning assets. The accompanying tables show the
relative composition of the Company's average deposits and the change in average deposit sources during the last




Change in Average 2001 2000 1999

Deposit Sources to 2002 to 2001 to 2000
Demand $2,820 3708 (34,116)
Interest bearing checking 2,433 673 (16,185)
Savings 19,208 1,185 (14,267)
Other time (22,668) 1,954 (10,991)
Certificates-$100,000 and over {5,137) (657) (9,823)

Total ($3,344) $3,863 (8$55,382)

The decline in average deposits during 1999 to 2000 is attributable to a number of factors. The negative
publicity resulting from the Bank’s loan losses had an adverse impact on bank deposits. In addition, the Bank
actively reduced deposits to shrink its asset size thereby reducing the amount of capital required to meet the terms of
its regulatory agreements.

Deposit trends increased during the last half of 2000 and throughout 2001 after the Bank completed its
recapitalization pian.

During 2002, average deposits declined $3.3 million. Throughout 2002, the Bank did not aggressively
price offered rates on time deposits relative to its competitors due to the available yields on investment alternatives
and low loan demand. Also, the mix of deposits shifted from time to savings deposits as depositors were reluctant to
extend maturities on time deposits due to low interest rates. Higher interest rates will likely result in a shift in
deposits from savings to time deposits.

Deferred Federal Tax Assets

Deferred federal tax assets declined from approximately $8.0 million at December 31, 2001 to §5.2 million
at December 31, 2002, The deferred federal tax assets include significant balances related to tax loss carryforwards
and tax credits carryforwards. The gross legal settlements received during 2002 generated taxable income of
approximately $6 3 million that utilized a portion of the tax loss carryforwards contributing to the reduction of the
deferred federal tax asset balance. Also contributing to the decline in net deferred tax assets was the improvement
in the estimated market value of securities available for sale. Since December 31, 2001, the tax effect of the change
in unrealized gains and losses on the portfolio has reduced deferred tax assets by $1.5 million because the estimated
market value of the portfolioc compared to amortized cost had improved by $4.3 million.

During the fourth quarter of 2002, the Company eliminated a $1.0 miilicn valuation allowance previously
established at the =nd of 1999 against the carrying value of its deferred tax assets. This reversal increased the
balance of deferred federal tax assets and reduced federal tax expense by $1.0 million. A number of factors
contributed to management’s estimate that the valuation allowance was no longer required. These factors included
the reduction in tax-exempt bonds that should improve taxable income in future periods, the elimination of the
regulatory agreements that restricted the Company’s operation and increased its operating costs, and the conclusion
of costly litigatior.

Other Assets
Other assets declined from $2.9 million at December 31, 2001 to $2.1 million at December 31, 2002, This

change was princidally the result of the liquidation and payout of assets funding certain deferred compensation plans
as the tesult of the comprehensive legal settlements previously discussed.
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Other Liabilities

Other liabilities declined from $3.2 million at December 31, 2001 to $1.7 million at December 31, 2002,
Other liabilities include amounts for various accrued expenses, accounts payable, funds owed for securities traded
but not yet settled, and obligations related to compensation plans. The decline in other liabilities for the comparative
periods presented was due to lower legal expense accruals and the termination of certain deferred compensation
plans as a result of the comprehensive legal settlements previously discussed.

Borrowings

Other sources of funds for the Company include short-term repurchase agreements and Federal Home Loan
Bank borrowings.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Effective liquidity management involves ensuring that the cash flow requirements of depositors and
borrowers, as well as the operating needs of the Company, are met. Funds are available through the operation of
BNB’s branch banking network that gathers demand and retail time deposits. BNB also acquires funds through
repurchase agreements and overnight federal funds that provide additional sources of liquidity. Total deposits
decreased $8.2 million from the end of 2001 to 2002. Average deposits decreased $3.3 million, or 1.4%, during
2002 compared to 2001. As a consequence of low interest rates, loan refinance activity, calls on investment
securities and investment sales provided the Company with a relatively large liquidity position throughout 2002,
Liquidity may be impacted by the ability of the Company to generate future earnings.

The Bank also has lines of credit with various correspondent banks totaling $4,100,000 that may be used as
an alternative funding source; none of these lines were drawn upon at December 31, 2002. The Bank has an unused
credit line with the Federal Home Loan Bank for $20 million. All borrowings at the Federal Home Loan Bank are
subject to eligible collateral requirements.

The main source of liquidity for the parent company is dividends from the Bank. At December 31, 2002,
the parent had cash and marketable securities with an estimated fair value of $1.5 million. The parent company does
not have any debt to third parties. Management believes sufficient liquidity is currently available to meet estimated
short-term and long-term funding needs for the Bank and the parent company.

At December 31, 2002, the Company had various contractual obligations and commitments to extend credit
that require liquid resources. These obligations and commitments are summarized in the following tables.

Contractual Obligations Payments Due by Period
Less than After
(Expressed in thousands) Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 4-5 Years 5 Years
Long-term borrowings $21,050 $16 335 $39 $20,960
Operating leases 285 121 128 36 -~
Total contractual
cash obligations $21,335 3137 5163 $75 $20,960
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Other Commitments Amount of Commitment Expiration Per Period

Total
Amounts Less than After

(Expressed in thousands) Committed 1 Year 1-3 Years 4-5 Years S Years
Lines of credit $7,331 $5,283 $551 - $1,497
Residential lines of credit 4,251 4,251 - - -
Residential censtruction commitments 2,215 2,215 - - -
Standby letters of credit 580 580 - - -
Other commercial commitments 707 707 - - -

Total commitments $15,084 $13,036 $551 - $1,497

There are no recommendations by the Company or Bank’s regulatory authorities, which, if implemented,
would have a material effect on liquidity, capital resources, or operations.

At December 31, 2002, shareholders' equity was $34.8 million compared to $25.8 million at December 31,
2001. The increase in capital occurred principally due to earnings retained by the Company and an improvement in
the market value of securities classified as available for sale and included as accumulated other comprehensive
income in sharcholders’ equity.

The Fzderal Reserve Board has adopted risk-based capital guidelines that assign risk weightings to
assets and off-talance sheet items. The guidelines also define and set minimum capital requirements (risk-
based capital ratios). Bank holding companies are required to have core capitai (Tier 1) of at least 4.0% of risk-
weighted assets and total capital of 8.0% of risk-weighted assets. Tier 1 capital consists principally of
shareholders’ equity less goodwill, and may include a portion of deferred tax assets. However, presently none
of the Company’s deferred tax assets are included as Tier 1 capitai. Total capital consists of Tier 1 capital, plus
certain debt instruments and a portion of the allowance for loan losses.

The fo lowing table shows several capital and liquidity ratios for the Company for the last two years:

December 31 2002 2001
Average shareholders’ equity to:
Average assets 10.6% 9.3%
Average deposits 13.1% 11.3%
Average loans 25.1% 21.8%

Risk-based capital ratio:

Tier 1 16.2% 12.6%
Total 17.5% 13.2%
Tier 1 leverage ratio 9.7% 7.1%

The Bank’s capital ratios are detailed in Note 19 of the Notes to the Consolidated Statements in the Company’s
financial statements beginning on page F-1.

Dividends
No divicends were paid during 2002, 2001 or 2000.

The subsidiary Bank is the primary source of funds to pay dividends to the shareholders of the Company.
The Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve Bank has issued a policy statement stating that a bank holding
company generally should not maintain its existing rate of cash dividends on common stock unless (1) the
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organization’s net income available to common shareholders over the past year has been sufficient to fully fund the
dividends and (2) the prospective rate of earnings retention appears consistent with the organization’s capital needs,
asset quality, and overall financial condition.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Currently, there are no recent accounting pronouncements that, if adopted, would have a material effect on
the Company’s results of operations, financial position or liquidity.

ITEM 7A-QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from adverse changes in the fair value of financial instruments due to
changes in interest rates, exchange rates and equity prices. The Company’s market risk is composed primarily of
interest rate risk. Interest rate risk results from timing differences in the repricing of assets, liabilities and off-
balance sheet instruments, changes in relationships between rate indices and the potential exercise of explicit or
embedded options. The Asset/Liability Management Committee (“ALCQO”) meets regularly to review the interest
rate sensitivity position of the Company and to monitor and limit exposure to interest rate risk. The goal of
asset/lability management is to maximize net interest income and the net value of the Company’s future cash flows
within the interest rate risk limits established by the Board of Directors.

Interest rate risk is monitored primarily through the use of two complementary measures: earnings
simulation modeling and net present value estimation. While each of these interest rate risk measurements has
limitations, taken together they represent a reasonably comprehensive view of the magnitude of interest rate risk in
the Company. The key assumptions underlying these measures are periodically reviewed by ALCO.

The eamings simulation model forecasts the effects on income under a variety of scenarios. This model
includes assumptions about how the balance sheet is likely to evolve through time in different interest rate
environments. Loan and deposit growth rate assumptions are derived from historical analysis and management’s
outlook, as are the assumptions used to project yields and rates for new loans and deposits. Securities portfolio
maturities and prepayments are assumed to be reinvested in similar instruments. Mortgage loan prepayment
assumptions are developed from industry median estimates of prepayment speeds.

Based on the earnings simulation model, changes in net interest income were projected as follows given a
parallel shift in the yield curve:

One-Year Net Interest Income

Simulation Projection 2002 . 2001

Down 100 basis points -7.0% -6.2%
Up 100 basis points 4.8% 3.7%
Up 200 basis points 7.3% 3.3%

Due to the current low interest rate environment, a decline of 200 basis points is not presented.

The net present value estimation (“NPV™) measure is used for discerning levels of risk present in the
balance sheet that might not be taken into account in the earnings simulation model due to the shorter time horizon
used by that model. The NPV of the balance sheet, at a point in time, is defined as the discounted present value of
asset cash flows minus the discounted value of liability cash flows. The NPV measure also assumes a static
balance sheet, versus the growth assumptions that are incorporated into the eamings simulation measure and an
unlimited time horizon instead of the one-year horizon applied in the eamings simulation. As with earnings
simulation modeling, assumptions about the timing and variability of balance sheet cash flows are important to NPV
analysis. The estimated decline in the present value of equity as a percentage of the total market value of equity at
December 31, 2002 would be 8.9% given a 200 basis point increase in interest rates.




| ITEM 8 - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The financial statements and schedules are set forth beginning on page F-1.
Summarized Quarterly Financial Information
Supplementary Data
First Second Third Fourth
(Expressed in thousands except per share data) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
‘ 2002
| Interest and dividend income $3,799 $3,833 $3,912 $3,733
Interest expense 1,734 1,584 1,560 1,482
Net interest income 2,065 2,249 2,352 2,251
Provision for loan losses - - (500) (529)
Securities gains (losses) (63) 31 121 - w
Gains on sale of loans held for sale 60 45 38 135
Legal settlemen: 3,933 2,378 - -
Net overhead (1) 3,067 2,230 2,171 2,287
| Income before income taxes 2,928 2,411 840 628
1 Income tax expense (benefit) 844 679 151 (864)
| Net income $2,084 31,732 $689 $1,492
Basic and diluted earnings per common share $0.19 $0.16 $0.06 $0.13
First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
2001
Interest and dividend income $4,671 $4,762 $4,421 $4,277
Interest expense 2,656 2,588 2,446 2,120
Net interest income 2,015 2,174 1,975 2,157
Provision for loan losses - - {600)
Securities gains (losses) (2) 6 (121) 3)
Gains on sale of loans and loans held for sale 6 20 127 128
Net cverhead (1) 2,093 2,267 2,916 3,086
Loss before income taxes : (74) (67) (935) (204)
Income tax expense (benefit) (239) (242) 473) 89
Net income {loss) $165 $175 {$462) {$293)
Basic and dilutec earnings per common share $0.01 $0.02 ($0.04) ($0.03)
(1) Net overhead includes noninterest income exclusive of securities gains (losses), gains on loans and loans held for
sale, and legal se:tlements less noninterest expense.
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ITEM 9 - CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

There were no changes in or disagreements with the Company’s external auditors on accounting and
financial disclosure.

PART NI
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The information required by this section will be included in the Company’s Proxy Statement to be filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on or before April 30, 2003. Such information is incorporated herein
by reference.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this section will be included in the Company’s Proxy Statement to be filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on or before April 30, 2003. Such information is incorporated herein
by reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND
MANAGEMENT

The information required by this section will be included in the Company’s Proxy Statement to be filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on or before April 30, 2003. Such information is incorporated herein
by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The information required by this section will be included in the Company’s Proxy Statement to be filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on or before April 30, 2003. Such information is incorporated herein
by reference.

ITEM 14. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

The Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded, based on their
evaluation within 90 days prior to the filing date of this annual report, that the Company’s disclosure controls
and procedures are effective for the timely recording, processing, summarizing and reporting of the information
required to be disclosed in reports filed under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934,

There have been no significant changes in the Company’s internal controls or in other factors that could
significantly affect those controls subsequent to the date of their evaluation.

PART IV
ITEM 15 - EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K
(a) 1. Financial Statements as listed on page 31.

2. Financial Statement Schedules as listed on page 31.
3. Exhibits as listed on page 30.




(b) Reports on Form §-K.

On November 15, 2002, the Company filed a Form 8-K to report that the Office of the Comptroller of the
Currency had released Belmont National Bank from the Consent Order dated August 3, 1999 and a Memorandum of

Understanding dated July 25, 2001 effective November 12, 2002,
SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunte duly authorized on March 17,
2003.

By /s/ Wilbur R. Roat BELMONT BANCORP.
Wilbur R. Roat (Registrant)
President & Ckief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by
the following persons on behalf of the registrant in the capacities and on the date indicated.

SIGNATURE TITLE DATE
/s/Wibur R. Roas Director, President & Chief Executive Officer 3/17/03
/s/David B. Kelley Senior Vice President and Director 3/17/03
/s/Jane R. Marsh Chief Financial Officer and Secretary 3/17/03
/s/Jay A. Beck Director 3/17/03
/s/David R. Giffia Chairman of the Board and Director 3/17/03
/s/John H. Geodman, II  Director 3/17/03
/s/Terrence A. Lee Director 3/17/03
/s/James R. Mille:: Director 3/17/03
/s/Tillio P. Petrozzi Director 3/17/03
/s/Brian L. Schambach Director 3/17/03
/s/Keith A. Somrier Director 3/17/03
/s/Charles A. Wilson, Jr. Director 3/17/03

27




CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
I, Wilbur R. Roat, certify that:
1. T have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Belmont Bancorp,;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, 1s made known to us by others within those entides,
particularly duzing the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date within 90
days prior to the filing date of this annual report (the “Evaluation Date”); and

c) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedutes based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of mternal controls which could adversely affect
the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have identified for
the registrant’s auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal controls; and

6. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have indicated in this annual report whether there were
significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls
subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant
deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Date: March 21, 2003

/s/ Wilbur R. Roat

Wilbur R. Roat

President & Chief Executive
Officer
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CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

1, Jane R. Marsh, certify that:

1.

2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Belmont Bancorp.;

Based or. my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

Based or. my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual
report, fzirly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registran- as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosute
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedutes as of a date within 90
days ptior to the filing date of this annual report (the “Evaluation Date”); and

c) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely affect
the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have identified for
the registrant’s auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal controls; and

The regis:rant’s other certifying officers and I have indicated in this annual report whether there were
significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls
subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant
deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Date: March 21, 2303

/s/ Jane R. Marsh
Jane R. Marsh
Chief Financial Officer
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Number Description

4.1 Charter (1)

42 Charter Amendment regarding Series A Preferred Stock (2)

43 Bylaws as currently in effect (1) ‘

10.1 Employment Agreement dated December 15, 1999 between Wilbur R. Roat, Belmont Bancorp.
and Belmont National Bank (3)

10.2 Employment Agreement dated April 16, 2001 between Michael Baylor, Belmont Bancorp., and
Belmont National Bank (4)

10.3 Belmont Bancorp. 2001 Stock Option Plan (5)

11.0 Statement Regarding Computation of Per Share Earnings (6)

12.0 Financial Statements (6)

21.1 List of Subsidiaries (6)

23.1 Consent of Crowe, Chizek and Company LLP (6)

99.1 Certification Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 of Annual Report on
Form 10-K of Belmont Bancorp. for the year ended December 31, 2002 (6)

99.2 Certification Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 of Annual Report on

Form 10-K of Belmont Bancorp. for the year ended December 31, 2002 (6)

¢} Filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-2 filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (Registration No. 333-91035) on November 16, 1999 and incorporated herein by
reference.

(2) Filed as an exhibit to Amendment No. 3 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-2 filed with

) the Securities and Exchange Commission (Registration No. 333-91035) on February 3, 2000 and

incorporated herein by reference.

(3) Filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1999
(Registration No. 0-12724) and incorporated herein by reference.

(%) Filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K. for the year ended December 31, 2001
(Registration No. 0-12724) and incorporated herein by reference.

&) Filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K. for the year ended December 31, 2000
(Registration No. 0-12724) and incorporated herein by reference.

(6) Filed herewith.

A copy of an exhibit may be obtained from the Company via written request. Please specify each exhibit requested
and your name, address and telephone number. A nominal photocopying charge may apply.

Belmont Bancorp.
Attn: Jane Marsh, Corporate Secretary
P.O. Box 249, St. Clairsville, Ohio
43950
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Belmont Bancorp. and Subsidiaries _s

Consolidated Balance Sheets D ‘
($000°s)

December 31,

Assets 2002 2001
Cash and due from banks $ 9,316 $ 14,566
Interest-bearing deposits in other banks 124 21
Federal funds sold 13,600 17,600
Cash and cash equivalents 23,040 32,187
Loans held for sale 786 534
Securities available for sale at fair value 122,794 125,551
Loans : 130,759 115,674
Less allowance for loan losses ) (4,287) (5,310)
Net loans 126,472 110,364
 Premises and equipment, net 6,177 6,532
' Deferred federal tax assets 5,207 7,998
Cash surrender value of life insurance 1,275 ' 1,205
Accrued income receivable 1,680 1,541
Other assets 2,117 2,944
Total assets $ 289,468 $ 288.856
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Liabilities
Noninterest bearing deposits:
Demand $ 28,721 $ 30,654
Interest bearing deposits:
Demand 28,800 27,647
Savings : 94,346 78,454
Time 78.376 101,731
Total deposits 230,243 238,486
Securities sold under repurchase agreements 1,307 647
Long-term borrowings 21,050 20,000
Accrued interest on deposits and other borrowings 377 652
Other liabilities 1,734 3,225
Total liabilities 254,711 263,010
Shareholders’ Equity

Preferred stock - authorized 90,000 shares with
no par value; no shares issued or outstanding — —
Common stock - $0.25 par value, 17,800,000 shares authorized;

11,153,195 shares issued 2,788 2,788
Additional paid-in capital 17,539 17,506
Retained earnings : 13,961 8,100
Treasury stock at cost (44,792 shares at 12/31/0
and 51,792 shares at 12/31/01) : (1,009) (1,170)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 1.478 (1,378)
Total shareholders’ equity 34,757 25.846
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 289,468 § 288,856

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Belmont Bancorg. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Income D
For the Years Ended Diecember 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 {$000’s except share and per share data) '
Interest and Dividend Income 2662 2001 20060
L.oans:
Taxav:e $ 87%¢ § 10,340  § 11,867
Tax-exempt 175 205 255
 Securities:
Taxabie 5,017 4,822 4,254
Tzx-exempt 867 1,879 2,139
Diividends 183 251 231
Fiterest on federal finds sold 275 634 391
Total interest and dividend income 15,277 18,131 19,137
Interest Expense
ieposiis 5,414 8,773 9,165
{ther borrowings 246 1,037 1,537

tal interest expense 6.364 9,810 10,702

¢t interest income 8,917 8,321 8,435

N
Frovision for Loan Losses (1.629} (600} 242
Net interest income after
provision for lcan losses 9,946 8,921 8,193
Noninterest Income
Trust fees 477 593 419
Service charges on deposits 918 918 848
Legal settiements 6,311 — —
Interest on federal tax refund — — 256
(ither operating ircome 689 817 896
ecurities gains (losses) 27 (120} 4
Cains {losses) on saiz of loans and loans held for sale 278 281 (40)
Tota! noninterest income 8,700 2,489 2,383
NMoninterest Expense
Salary and employee benefits 4,869 4,565 4,066
Net occupancy expense of premises 882 900 839
Equipment expenses 9209 907 865
Legal fees 1,057 2,836 1,153
Legal settlements exense 635 139 12
Cther operating expenses 3.487 3,343 2,935
Total noninterest expense 11,839 12,690 9,870
Income (loss) before income taxes 6,807 (1,280) 706
Income Tax Expense (Benefit) 810 {865) (680)
Net income (loss) $ 5997 § (415) § 1,386
Weighted Average Number of Shares Outstanding 11,152,274 11,101,403 8,778,621
Basic and Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Common Share $ 054 § (0.04) % 0.16

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Belmont Bancorp. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

For the Years

Ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 ($000’s)

T S R R N

i

Accumulated

Other
Additional Compre- Compre-
Preferred Common Paid-in  Retained Treasury  hensive hensive
Total Stock Stock Capital  Earnings Stock Income (Loss) Income
Balance, January 1, 2000 $11,231 $ 1,650 $1,321 § 7904 § 7,129 $(1,170)  $ (5,603)
Comprehensive income
Net income 1,386 1,386 $ 1,386
Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Unrealized gain on securities net
of reclassification adjustment 3,658 3,658 3.658
Comprehensive income $ 5044
Conversion of Series A preferred -
stock to common stock — (1,650) 206 1,444
Issuance of common stock 9,327 1,261 8,066
Balance, December 31, 2000 25,602 — 2,788 17,414 8,515 (1,170} (1,945)
Comprehensive income
Net loss (415) (415) 3 (415
Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Unrealized gain on securities
net of reclassification adjustment 567 567 567
Comprehensive income § 152
Common stock options granted 92 92 -
Balance, December 31, 2001 25,846 — 2,788 17,506 8,100 (1,170} (1,378)
Comprehensive income
Net income 5,997 5,997 $ 5997
Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Unrealized gain on securities net of
reclassification adjustment 2,856 2,856 2,856
Comprehensive income $ 8853
Stock options exercised (7,000 shares) 25 (136) 161
Common stock options granted 33 33
Balance, December 31, 2002 $34,757 — 82788 $17,539 _$13,961 $(1.009) $ 1478

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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B:lmont Bancorp. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Fo: the Years Ended December 31,2002, 2001 and 2000 ($000’s) ' e
g ... ]
2002 2001 2000
Operating Activities
Nzt income (loss) 5,997 $ (415) $ 1,386
Adjustments to reconci.¢ net income (loss} to net
czsh flows from operating activities:
Provision for loan lusses (1,029} (600) 242
Depreciation and amortization expense 646 687 675
Amortization of investment security premiums 1,584 997 593
Accretion of investment security discounts (182} (411) (610)
Amortization and impairment of mortgage servicing rights 27 147 10
Securities (gains) losses 27 120 4)
Common stock options granted/vested 33 92 —
Deferred taxes 1,322 (944) (680)
Federal Home Loan Bank stock dividends (155) (213) (223)
(Gain) loss on sale of fixed assets 5 5 ©)
(Gain) loss on sale of loans 278) (281) 40
(Gain) loss on sale of other real estate owned 5 (11) —
Changes in:
Interest receivable (59) 117 93
Interest payable (275) (168) 73
Loans held for sale (252} (534) 1,805
Federal tax refund — — 5,696
Others, net (897) 740 ~ (280)
Cash from operating activities 6,709 _(672) 8,812
Investing Activities
Proceeds from:
Maturities and calls of securities 16,846 9,203 4557
Sale of securities available for sale 33,015 15,074 . 5,667
Principal collected on mortgage-backed securities 26,054 29,195 11,046
Sale of loans from portfolio 336 — 2,178
Redemption of life insurance contracts — 3,431 —
Siles of other real estate owned 240 989 97
Siles of premises and equipment — 15 9
Purchases of:
Szcurities available for sale (70,051) (68,973) (14,475)
Loans (1,406) — —
P -emises and equipment (296) (447) (209)
Ctanges in:
Lsans, net (14.092) 12,129 29.902
Cash from investing ac:ivities (9.348) 616 38.772
Financing Activities
Proceeds from:
Advances of long-term debt 1,050 — —
Issuance of common stock — — 9,327
Exercise of stock options 25 — —
Changes in:
Dzposits (8,243 6,800 (23,746)
Rzpurchase agreements 660 (557) (4,889)
Short-term borrowings — — (19.740)
Cash from financing ac:ivities (6,508) 6,243 (39,048)
Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (9,147} 6,187 8,536
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 32,187 26,000 17.464
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $ 23,040 $ 32,187 $ 26,000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Belmont Bancorp. and Subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Years Ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000

1. Summary of Signifigant Accounting Policies

The accounting and reporting policies and practices of
Belmont Bancorp. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries are
1n accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America and conform to general
practices within the banking industry. The more significant
of these policies and practices are summarized below.

Nature of Operations: Belmont Bancorp. provides a variety
of banking services to individuals and businesses through the
branch network of its wholly-owned subsidiary, Belmont
National Bank (BNB). BNB operates twelve full-service
banking facilities located in Belmont, Harrison, and
Tuscarawas Counties in Ohio, and Wheeling, West Virginia.
Its primary deposit products are checking, savings, and term
certificate accounts, and its primary lending products are
residential mortgage, commercial, commercial real estate,
and installment loans. Substantially all loans are secured by
specific items of collateral including business assets,
consumer assets, and commercial and residential real estate.
Commercial loans are expected to be repaid from cash flow
from operations of businesses. Other financial instruments,
which potentially represent concentrations of credit risk,
include deposit accounts in other financial institutions and
federal funds sold.

Principles of Consolidation: The consolidated financial
statements include the accounts of Belmont Bancorp. and its
wholly-owned subsidiaries, Belmont National Bank and
Belmont Financial Network, Inc. Material intercompany
accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. Estimates particularly subject to change would
include the allowance for loan losses, deferred taxes, fair
values of financial instruments, and loss contingencies.

Securities Held to Maturity: These securities are purchased
with the original intent to hold to maturity. Events whichmay
be reasonably anticipated are considered when determining
the Company’s intent and ability to hold to maturity.
Securities meeting such criteria at the date of purchase and as
of the balance sheet date are carried at cost, adjusted for
amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts.

Securities Available for Sale: Debt and equity securities to
be held for indefinite periods of time and not intended to be
held to maturity are classified as available for sale and carried
at fair value with net unrealized gains and losses, net of tax,
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reflected as a component of other comprehensive income
until realized. Securities held for indefinite periods of time
include securities that may be sold to meet liquidity needs or
in response to significant changes in interest rates or
prepayment risks as part of the Company’s overall asset/
liability management strategy.

Trading Securities: Trading securities are held for resale
within a short period of time and are stated at fair value.
Trading gains and losses include the net realized gain or loss
and market value adjustments of the trading account
portfolio. These gains and losses are reported in current
earnings.

Loans Held for Sale: Residential mortgage loans which
management does not intend to hold to maturity or for which
sales are pending are reported as loans held for sale. Such
loans are carried at the lower of aggregate cost or fair value.

Bank Owned Life Insurance: The Company has purchased
life insurance policies principally to provide a benefit for
retirees. Life insurance is recorded at its cash surrender
value, or the amount that can be realized upon redemption.

Income Recognition: Income earned by the Company and
its subsidiaries is recognized principally on the accrual basis
of accounting. Certain fees, principally service, are
recognized as income when billed. The subsidiary bank
suspends the accrual of interest on loans when, in
management’s opinion, the collection of all or a portion of
interest has become doubtful. Generally, when a loan is
placed on nonaccrual, the Bank charges all previously
accrued and unpaid interest against income. In future
periods, interest will be included in income to the extent
received only if complete principal recovery is reasonably
assured.

It is the Company’s policy not to recognize interest income
on impaired loans unless the likelihood of future loss is
remote. Interest payments received on such loans are applied
as a reduction of the loan principal balance.

The Company defers and amortizes loan fees and related
origination costs. These fees and costs are amortized into
interest or other income over the estimated life of the loan
using a method which approximates the interest method.

For securities, interest income includes amortization of
purchase premium or discount. Gains and losses on sales are
based on the amortized cost of the security sold. Securities
are written down to fair value when a decline in fair value is
not temporary.

Allowance For Loan Losses: The allowance for loan losses
is maintained at a level which, in management’s judgment,
is adequate to absorb probable credit losses incurred in the
loan portfolio. The amount of the allowance is based on
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1. Summary of Signifigant Accounting Policies (continued)

management’s evaluation of the collectibility of the loan
portfolio, including the nature of the portfolio, credit
concentrations, treads in historical loss experience, specific
impaired loans, and economic conditions.

Allowances for iripaired loans are generally determined
based on collateral values or the present value of estimated
cash flows. A loan is impaired when, based on current
information and events, it is probable that all scheduled
payments of principal and interest will not be collected
according to the loan agreement. Factors in determining
impairment include payment status and the probability of
collecting schedu'ed payments. Insignificant payment
delays and payment shortfalls generally do not result in
impairment. Impezirment for individual commercial and
construction loans is measured by either the present value of
expectec future casa flows discounted at the loan’s effective
rate or the fair value of the collateral if repayment is expected
solely from the collateral. Large groups of smaller balance
homogeneous loans, such as residential mortgage, credit
card, and consumer loans, are collectively evaluated for
‘mpairment.

The allowance is iricreased by a provision for loan losses,
-which is charged to expense and reduced by charge-offs, net
ofrecoveries. Changes in the allowance relating to impaired
.oans are charged or credited to the provision for loan losses.
3ecause of uncertainties inherent in the estimation process,
management’s estimate of credit losses inherent in the loan
portfolio and the re ated allowance may change in the near
term.

Premises and Equipment: Premises and equipment are
stated at cost, 'ess accumulated depreciation and
emortization. Provisions for depreciation and amortization
ere computed generally using the straight line method over
the estimated useful lives of the assets. Leasehold
improvements are anortized on the straight line basis over
t1e lease period.

When units of proderty are disposed, the premises and
equipment accounts are relieved of the cost and the
accumulated depreciation related to such units. Any
rzsulting gains or losses are credited to or charged against
income. Costs of repairs and maintenance are charged to
expense as incurred. Major renewals and betterments are
capitalized at cost.

Foreclosed Assets: Assets acquired through or instead of
lean foreclosure are initially recorded at the lower of cost or
fuir value when acquired, establishing a new cost basis. If
foir value declines, a valuation allowance is recorded
ttrough expense. Costs after acquisition are expensed.

Servicing Rights: Servicing rights are recognized as assets
for the allocated value of retained servicing rights on loans

sold. Servicing rights are expensed in proportion to, and over
the period of, estimated net servicing revenues. Impairment
is evaluated based on the fair value of the rights, using
groupings of the underlying loans as to interest rates and
then, secondarily, as to geographic and prepayment
characteristics. Fair value is determined using prices for
similar assets with similar characteristics, when available, or
based upon discounted cash flows using market-based
assumptions. Any impairment of a grouping is reported as a
valuation allowance.

Long-term Assets: Premises and equipment and other long-
term assets are reviewed for impairment when events
indicate their carrying amount may not be recoverable from
future undiscounted cash flows. If impaired, the assets are
recorded at fair value.

Repurchase Agreements: Substantially all repurchase
agreement liabilities represent amounts advanced by various
customers. Securities are pledged to cover these liabilities,
which are not covered by federal deposit insurance.

Benefit Plans: Profit-sharing and 401k plan expense is the
amount contributed determined by formula and by board
decision. Defeired compensation plan expense allocates the
benefits over years of service.

Income Taxes: Income tax expense is the total of the current
year income tax due or refundable and the change in deferred
tax assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are the expected future tax amounts for the temporary
differences between carrying amounts and tax bases of assets
and liabilities, computed using enacted tax rates. A
valuation allowance, if needed, reduces deferred tax assets to
the amount expected to be realized.

Financial Instruments: Financial instruments include off-
balance sheet credit instruments, such as commitments to
make loans and standby letters of credit, issued to meet
customer financing needs. The face amount for these items
represents the exposure to loss, before considering customer
collateral or avility to repay. Such financial instruments are
recorded when they are funded.

Loss Contingencies: Loss contingencies, including claims
and legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business,
are recorded as liabilities when the likelihood of loss is
probable and an amount or range of loss can be reasonably
estimated.

Dividend Restriction:  Banking regulations require
maintaining certain capital levels and may limit the
dividends paid by the Bank to the holding company or by the
holding company to shareholders.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments: Fair values of

financial instroments are estimated using relevant market
information and other assumptions, as more fully disclosed
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1. Summary 0f Sngmgam ccoun&mg Pohcnes (connnued)

in a separate note. Fair value estimates involve uncertainties
and matters of significant judgement regarding interest
rates, credit risk, prepayments, and other factors, especially
in the absence of broad markets for particular items.
Changes in assumptions or in market conditions could
significantly affect the estimates.

Business Segments: While the Company’s chief decision-
makers monitor the revenue streams of the various
Company products and services, the identifiable segments
are not material and operations are managed and financial
performance is evaluated on a Company-wide basis.
Accordingly, all of the Company’s financial service
operations are considered by management to be aggregated
in one reportable operating segment.

Earnings Per Common Share: Basic earnings per
common share is net income divided by the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding during the
period. Diluted earnings per common share includes the
dilutive effect of additional potential common shares
issuable under stock options. These options were anti-
dilutive in 2001.

Stock Compensation: Employee compensation expense
under stock options is reported using the intrinsic value
method. No stock-based compensation cost is reflected in
net income for options granted with an exercise price equal
to or greater than the market price of the underlying common
stock at date of grant. Compensation expense is reflected in
net income for certain options granted with an exercise price
below the market price of the underlying common stock at
the date of the grant. The following table illustrates the effect
on net income and earnings per share if expense was
measured using the fair value recognition provisions of
FASB Statement No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based

Compensation.” There were no options granted in 2000.
{Expressed in thousands) 2002 2001
Net income (loss) as reported $5,997 § (415)
Deduct: Stock-based compensation

expense determined under fair value

based method (49) (55
Pro forma net income (loss) $5,948 $ (470)
Basic earnings (loss) per share as reported $ 054 (50.04)
Pro forma basic earnings (loss) per share 0.53 (0.04)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share as reported  § 0.54 (30.04)
Pro forma diluted earnings (loss) per share 0.53 (0.04)

The pro forma effects are computed using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model, using the following weighted-average assumptions
as of the grant date.

2002 2001
Risk-free interest rate 4.64%-3.54%  5.29%-5.03%
Expected option life 7 years 7 years
Expected stock price volatility 55% 69%-70%
Dividend yield 0% 0%
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Reclassnﬁcatmns Certam prior year amounts may have been

reclassified to conform with the current year presentation.

Newly [Issued But Not Yet Effective Accounting
Standards: New accounting standards on asset retirement
obligations, restructuring activities and exit costs, operating
leases, and early extinguishments of debt were issued in
2002. Management determined that when the new
accounting standards are adopted in 2003 they would not
have a material impact on the Company’s financial condition
or results of operations.

2. Securities
At December 31,2002 and 2001, all securities were classified

as available for sale. The estimated fair value of securities as
of December 31 are depicted in the following tables:

2002
Estimated  Gross Gross
Fair Unrealized Unrealized
(Expressed in thousands) Value  Gains Losses
U.S. Treasury securities and
obligations of U.S. Government
corporations and agencies $33004 § 609 § (6
Tax-exempt obligations of states and
political subdivisions 3,596 181 (54)
Taxable obligations of states and
political subdivisions 20,042 642 —
Mortgage-backed securities 36,002 870  (116)
Collateralized mortgage obligations 9,806 368 M
Corporate debt 13,011 243 (666)
Asset-backed securities 1,017 17 —
Total debt securities 116,478 2930  (843)
Marketable equity securities 6316 152 —
Total available for sale $122,794  $3,082  $(843)
2001
Estimated  Gross Gross
Farr  Unrealized Unrealized
(Expressed in thousands) Value Gains Losses
U.S. Treasury securities and
obligations of U.S. Government
corporations and agencies $ 13730 & 54§ (47)
Tax-exempt obligations of states .
and political subdivisions 29,576 105 (2,307
Taxable obligations of states and
political subdivisions 7,251 58 (70)
Mortgage-backed securities 39,273 452 (173)
Collateralized mortgage obligations 18,770 323 (33)
Corporate debt 12,851 42  (584)
Total debt securities 121,451 1,034 (3214)
Marketable equity securities 4,100 112 (20)
Total available for sale $ 125,551  §$1,146 §(3,234)
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2. Securities (continued)

Theestimated fairvalue of securities at December 31,2002, by
centractual maturity, ‘ollow. Expected maturities may differ
from contractual maturities because issuers may have the right
to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment
penalties. Securities not due at a single maturity date are listed
senarately.

{Expressed in thousands”

Dueincneyearorless $3,657
Dueafteroneyear

through fiveyears 59,657
Dreafter fiveyears

tt roughten years 212
Duresftertenyears 6,127
Mortgage-bzcked securities 36,002
Collateralized mortgage obligations 9,806
Asset-backed securities 1,017
Merketable equity securities 6316

Total 3122,794
Sa'es and write-dovns of securities resulted in the
foilowing:
(Expressed i thousands) 2002 2001 2006
Proceeds from sales $33,015 § 15074 § 5,667
Gross gains 360 86 78
Cresslesses (335) (93) (18)
Reclizedlossesonmarketdeclines — {113) (56)

Gainsonsecuritiescalied 2 —_ —_

Asssts carried at 815,524,000 and $20,366,000 at December
31, 2602 and 2001, respectively, were pledged 1o secure
Un ted States Governraent and other public funds, 2nc for
othr purposes as required or permitted by law. Certain
othar securities were p.edged to secure Federal Heome Loan
Bark advences as dsclosed below under the caption
“Borrowings.”

3. L.oans and Allowarce for Loan Losses

Loans outsianding at December 21 are as foilows:

(Exyeessed in thousancs) 2662 2001
Real estate-construction $ 385 § 3318
Real estate-morigage 49,536 38,701
Real estate-secured by nonfarm,

nor residentiz! property 47,698 35,892
Commercial, financia and agricultural 24,057 31,306
Obligations of political subdivisions inthe U.S. 2,505 2,775
insta Iment and credit card loans to individuals 3,107 3,678
Loarsreceivable $ 130,759 § 115,674

Morigage loans serviced for others approximated $65,887,0600
at Becember 31, 2002, and $57,548,000 at December3!,
200

Non-accruing loans amounted to $3,171,000 at December 31,
2002, and $2,558,000 at December 31, 2001. The after-tax
effect of the interest that would have been accrued on these
loans was $265,000 in 2002 and $499,000 in 20601. Loans
past due 9 days and still accruing interest were $32,000 at
December 31, 2002, and $187,000 at December 31, 2001.

Nonperforming loans and impaired loans are defined
differently. Some loans may be included in both categories,
whereas other lcans may only be included in one category.
At December 31, impaired loans were as follows:

(Expressed in thousands) 2002 2001 2000
Impaired loans with no allocated
allowance for loan losses §

Impaired loans with allocated

134§ 124 § 2

allowance for loan losses 3223 5.822 9.020
Total $ 3357 § 5946 § 9.022
Amount of the allowance

for loan losses allocated $ 1,022 $ 1,115 § 2,673
Average impaired loans $ 4558 § 7,429 §11,545

Interest income recognized

during impairment § 122 3§ 4 8 —
Cash-basis interest
income recognized $ 122§ 4 & —

Activity in the allowance for loan losses is summarized as
follows:

{Expressed in thousands) 2002 2001 2000
Balance at beginning of year $ 5310 § 7,667 § 9,702
Provision for loan losses (1,029) (600) 242

Recoveries on loans previously

charged-off 353 617 2,023
Loans charged-off (347) (2374 (4300

Balance at end of year - 4287 8§ 5310 § 7,667

The entire allowance represents a valuation reserve which is
available for future charge-offs.

4. Secondary Mortgage Market Activities

Activity for capitalized mortgage servicing rights and the
related valutation alilowance was as follows:

{(Expressed in thousands) 2002 2001 2000

Servicing rights:

Beginning of year $ 414 §$ 320 3 330

Additions 166 241 -

Amortized to expense (162) (147) (10)
Endofyear § 418 § 414 S 320

Valuation allowance:

Beginning of year $ - $ - 8 -

Additions expensed 109 - -

Reductions credited to expense - - -
Direct write-downs - - -
Endofyear § 109 3 - -
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5 Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment at December 31 are as follows:

Original
Useful Life
(Expressed in thousands) 2002 2001 Years
Land and land improvements $ 1,198 $ 1,185
Buildings 5,894 5,896 30-50
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 4,582 4,458 5-12
Leasehold improvements 408 408 5-20
Total 12,082 11,947
Less accumulated depreciation |
and amortization 5.905 5,415
Premises and equipment, net $ 6.177 $ 6.532

6. Deposits

At December 31, 2002, the aggregate maturities of time
deposits are summarized as follows:

(Expressed in thousands)

2003 $ 42,464
2004 13,494
2005 7,963
2006 3,877
2007 5,937
Thereafter 4,641

Total $ 78,376

A maturity distribution of time certificates of deposit of
$100,000 or more follows:

(Expressed in thousands) 2002 2001
Dueinthree monthsorless $ 2485 § 4923
Due after three months through six months 825 1,919
Due after six months through twelve months 1,485 1,473
Due after one yearthrough five years 3,812 3,926
Due after five years 1,578 1,725
Total 310,185 §13.966

7. Securities Sold Under Repurchase Agreements

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase represent
overnight borrowings. For all repurchase agreements, the
securities underlying the agreements were under the
subsidiary bank’s control. Information related to these
borrowings is summarized below:

N T

(Expressed inthousands) 2002 2001

Balanceatyear-end $ 1,307 § 647
Average duringthe year § 1367 $ 1,266
Maximum month-end balance $§ 1,559 § 1,454
Weighted average rate during the year 0.99% 3.09%
Weighted averagerate atDecember31 0.79% 1.38%

8. Borrowings
The Company uses both short and long-term borrowings to
meet its liquidity and funding needs consisting primarily of
federal funds purchases and advances from the Federal
Home Loan Bank (FHLB). All FHLB advances, including
short and long-term borrowings, are secured by collateral
consisting of a specific pledge of residential mortgage loans,
securities, and shares of stock of the FHLB. The carrying
value of residential mortgage loans available as collateral for
FHLB advances was $10,115,000 and $15,081,000 at
December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The carrying
value of FHLB stock and securities that secure the FHLB
debt was $19,624,000 and $18,560,000 at December 31,
2002 and 2001, respectively. FHLB advances are made
under agreements which allow for maximum borrowings of
$41 million subject to collateral requirements. Advances
can be made at fixed or variable rates of interest.

Information related to these borrowings at December 31,
2002 and 2001, is summarized below.

Long-term berrowings

Long-term borrowings include two $10 million advances
from the FHLB with initial fixed interest rates of 4.78% and
4.53% for three years. These advances have a ten year final
maturity and are due in 2008. Currently, the FHLB has the
option to convert the advances to a floating rate based on the
3 month LIBOR rate. If this option is exercised by the
FHLB, the Bank may prepay the advance without penalty in
full or in part.

In addition, the Bank has an amortizing advance in the
amount of $1,050,000 with a fixed rate of 4.654% and a
balloon payment due in 2017,

Scheduled principal payments on long-term debt in each of
the five years subsequent to December 31, 2002, are as
follows:

(Expressedinthousands)

2003 $ 16
2004 17
2005 18
2006 19
2007 20
Thereafter 20,960

9, Income Tax
The components of income taxes are as follows:

(Expressed in thousands) 2002 2001 2000
Current payable (refundable) $ (512) § 79 § —
Deferred 2,322 (944) (680)
Change in valuation allowance (1,000) — —
Income tax expense (benefit) $§ 810 $ (865) $ (680)
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9. Income Tax (continued)

Tae following temporary differences gave rise to the net
deferredtax assetat December31,2002and2001:

{Expressed inthousands) 2002 2001
Deferredtax assets:
Lllowance forloanlosses S — 3 322
Iterestonrnon-accrualioans 27 257
teferred compensation liability
foremployees’ future benefits 69 294
Mortgage servicingrights 259 313
Unrealized iosses oninvestments — 710
Ctherdeferred tax assets 211 124
Metoperating loss carryforward 5,399 6,543
Taxcreditcarryforwards 1,294 1,660
Total deferred tax assets 7,259 10,223
Veluationailowance — (1,000)
Totaldeferredtax assets,
1etofvaluationaliowance 7,259 8,223
Deferredtax liabilities:
Fzderal Home Loan Bank stock dividends (672) (619)
Allowance forioanlosses (28) —
Unrealized gains oninvestments (761) —
Ctherdeferredtax liabilities (591) {606)
Totaldeferred tax liabilities (2.052) (1,225)

Netdeferred tax asset $ 5207 § 7,998

Included inthe tax assets above are significant balances related
to ax loss carryforwarcs and tax credits. Managementbelieves
thet these items will be used prior to their expiration. This is
based on management’s estimates regarding earnings in future
peiods, which inciudes improvement in non-earning asset
ba ances, andareductionintax exemptincome.

A reconciliation between the amount of reported income tax
exsense and the amount computed by applying the statutory
federal income tax ratz to income before income taxes is as
follows:

2002 2001 2000

(Exy ressed in thousands) Amomt  Percent  Amount  Percent  Amount  Percent

Tax itstatutory rate $234 3P S (435 (340% 3 240 340%
Tax :xemptinterest
cninvestments
axdloans (317) (47T%) (602)  (47.0%) (684) (96.9%)
Taxredits (178)  (2.6%) 210)  (16.5%) (197) (27.9%)
Eamingsonlife
ins Irancepolicies — — 191 14.9% {19 (11.2%)
Others-net O (0.1%) 191 14%% 40 57%
Char.geinvaluation
allowance (1,000) (14.7%) — -— — —
Actualtaxexpense(benefit) § 810 [1.9% S (8635) (67.7%)  § (680) (963%)

the Company generated taxable losses
aggregating approximately $22,063,000 which were carried back to
prior years. The taxable income in all open taxable years has been
eliminated and the remaining net operating loss is being carried
forward. During 2001, the Company generated additional taxable
losses of $4,963,000 which increased the net operating loss
carryforward. The total carryforward at December 31, 2002 of
$15,878,00C expires $6,157,000 in 2019, $4,758,000 in 2020 and
$4,963,000 in 2021. The Company also has a low income housing
credit carryforward of $810,000 and an historic tax credit carry
forward of $484,000. The low income housing credit expires in
varying amounts from 2017 through 20622. The historic credit expires
in2012.

During 1998 and 1999,

The expense (benefit) related to securities gains and losses were
$9,000,5(41,000),and $1,000 for2002,2001 and 2000, respectively.

10. Employee Benefit Plans

The Company has a profit-sharing retirement plan which
includes ali full-time employees who have reached the age
of eighteen. Each participant can elect to contribute to the
plan an amount not to exceed the limits as determined by
the Internal Revenue Service. The plan provides for
an employer matching contribution on the first 4% of the
participant’s elective contribution. In addition to
the matching contribution, the plan provides for a
discretionary contribution to be determined by the Bank’s
Board of Directors.

Total profit-sharing expense was $199,000 for 2002,
$48,000 for 2601, and $52,000 for 2000. Profit-sharing
expense for 2002 included a $40,000 payment to the 401(k)
account of a former executive officer as part of a legal
settlement.

In addition tc providing the profit-sharing plan, the
Company sponsors two defined benefit post-retirement
plans that cover both salaried and nonsalaried employees.
Employees must be fifty-five years old and have ten years of
service to qualify for the plans. One plan provides medical
and dental benefits, and the other provides life insurance
benefits. The post-retirement health care plan is contributory,
with retiree contributions adjusted annuaily; the life
insurance plan is noncontributory. The expense under the
plans was less than $5,000 in each of the years ending 2002,
2001 and 2000. The liability for the plans was $132,000 at
December 31, 2002 and $129,000 at December 31, 2001.

11. Leases

The subsidiary bank utilized certain bank premises and
equipment under long-term leases expiring at various dates.
In certain cases, these leases contain renewal options and
generally provide that the Company will pay for insurance,
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11. Leases (continued)
taxes and maintenance.

As of December 31, 2002, the future minimum rental
payments required under noncancelable operating leases
with initial terms in excess of one year were as follows:

(Expressedinthousands) Operating I eases

Yearending December31,
2003 $ 121
2004 70
2005 58
2006 24
2007 12
Thereafter -
Total minimum lease payments 3 285

Rental expense under operating leases approximated $124,000
in2002,$122,000in2001, and $119,000in2000.

12. Related Party Transactions

Certain directors and executive officers and their associates
were customers of, and had other transactions with, the
subsidiary bank in the ordinary course of business in 2002
and 2001.

The following is an analysis of loan activity to directors,
executive officers, and their associates:

(Expressed in thousands) 2002
Balance previously reported $ 3,090
New loans during the year 136
Total 3,226
Less repayments during the year (18)
Effect of changes in related parties (2,369
Balance, December 31 h 839

During 2002, three directors resigned; this is reflected in the
effectofchangesinrelated parties.

Related party deposits totaled $1,123,000 and $ 1,920,000

atDecember31,2002and 2001, respectively.
13. Off-Balance Sheet Financial Instruments

The subsidiary bank is a party to financial instruments with
off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business to
meet the financing needs of its customers. These financial
instruments include commitments to extend credit and
- standby letters of credit. These instruments involve, to
varying degrees, elements of credit risk in excess of the
amount recognized in the balance sheet. The contract
amounts of those instruments reflect the extent of
involvement the Company has in particular classes of
financial instruments.

R —_—— . - :

The Company’s exposure to credit loss in the event of

nonperformance by the other party to the financial instrument
for commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit
is represented by the contractual amount of those instruments.
The Company uses the same credit policies in making
commitments and conditional obligations as it does for on-
balance-sheet instruments.

The following represents financial instruments whose
contract amounts represent credit risk at December31:

Contract Amount

{Expressed in thousands) 2002 2001
Commitments to extend credit $ 14,504 $ 12,023
Standby letters of credit 580 353

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a
customer as long as there is no violation of any condition
established in the contract. Commitments generally have
fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may
require payment of a fee. Since many of the commitments are
expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total
commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash
requirements. The Company evaluates each customer’s
creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of
collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by the Company
upon extension of credit, is based on management’s credit
evaluation of the counter party. Collateral held varies, but
may include accounts receivable, inventory, property, plant,
and equipment, and income-producing properties.

At December 31, 2002, $11,614,000 in commitments to
extend credit were issued at an adjustable rate of interest; the
remaining $2,890,000 in commitments were issued at fixed
rates, with rates ranging from 4.97% to 18.00%. Most of
these commitments expire within one year.

AtDecember 31,2001, $8,453,000 in commitments to extend
credit were issued at an adjustable rate of interest; the
remaining $3,570,000 in commitments were issued at fixed
rates, with rates ranging from 6.36% to 18.00%.

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued
by the Company to guarantee the performance of a customer
to a third party. Those guarantees are primarily issued to
support public and private borrowing arrangements. All of
the standby letters of credit expire in 2003. The credit risk
involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as
that involved in extending loan facilities to customers.

14. Concentrations of Credit Risk

The subsidiary bank extends commercial, consumer, and real
estate loans to customers primarily located in Belmont,
Harrison, Jefferson, and Tuscarawas Counties in Ohio and
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14. Concentrations of Credit Risk (continued)

Chio and Marshail Counties in West Virginia. While the loan
portfolios are diversifizd, the ability of the borrowers to meet
their contractual cbligations partially depends upon the
general economic cordition of Southeastern Ohio and the
Nerthern Panhandle o” West Virginia.

Thz subsidiary bank measures concentration of credit based
on categorizing loans by the Standard Industry Classification
codes. Loans and commitments equal to or exceeding 25% of
Tier 1 capital are considered concentrations of credit. Atyear
end, the bank had cor.centrations of credit in the following
incustry:

(Erpressed in thousands) 2002

Loan balance and Percent of
Incustry available credit Tier 1 Capital
Real estate - operators of $11,521 44.3%
r.onresidential buildings
2001
Real estate - operators of $ 7,520 40.9%

nonresidential buildings
15. Limitations on D :vidends

Tte approval of the Comptroller of the Currency is required
to pay dividends if tke total of all dividends declared by a
naiional bank in any calendar year exceeds the total of its
retained net profits for the current year plus the two preceding
years. Under this formula, the Bank can declare dividends in
2003 without the approval of the Comptroller of the Currency
of approximately §5,145,000 plus an additional amount equal
¢ the Bank’s net pro:it for 2003 up to the date of any such
di7idend declaration. Jividends from the subsidiary bank are
the primary source of funds to pay dividends to the
shareholders of Belmont Bancorp.

1€. Other Operating Expenses

Other operating expenses include the following:

{Expressedin thousands) 2002 2001 2000
Taxesotherthan payroll

aidreslestate § 197 § 226 § 24
Suppliesand printing 206 200 165
Insurance, inciuding

federal depositinsurance 586 590 774
Amortization and impair nent

ofmortgage servicing rights 271 147 10
Consulting expense 124 232 139
Examinations and audits 458 446 359
Advertising 227 220 140
Other (individually lessthan

1% oftotal income) 1418 1,282 1,324
Total § 3487 $ 3343 § 2935
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17. Restrictions on Cash

The subsidiary bank is required to maintain a reserve balance
with the Federal Reserve Bank. The amounts of the reserve
requirement at December31, 2002 was $3,043,000 and at
December 31, 2001 was $2,934,000.

18. Cash Flows information

The Company’s policy is to include cash on hand and amounts
due from banks in the definition of cash and cash equivalents.

Cash payments for interest and federal income taxes and
cash receipts for federal tax refunds were as follows:

(Expressedinthousands) 2002 2001 2000
Cash payments for interest § 6,635 $ 9,978 §10,629
Cashpayments forincome taxes - - -

Federaltax refund 510 - 5,696

Non-cash transfers to other real estate were $220,000 in
2002, $316,000 in 2001, and $901,000 in 2000. Non-cash
transfers during 2000 also involved the conversion of
preferred stock to common stock for $1,650,000.

19. Regulatory Matters

The Company and Bank are subject to various regulatory
capital requirements administered by the federal banking
agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can
nitiate certain mandatory, and possibly additicnal
discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could
have a direct material effect on the Company’s and Bank’s
financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and
the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the
Company and Bank must meet specific capital guidelines
that involve quantitative measures of the Company’s and
Bank’s assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet items
as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The
Company's and Bank’s capital amounts and classifications
are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators
about components, risk, weighting, and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure
capital adequacy require the Company and Bank to maintain
minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below) of
total and Tier I capital (as defined in the regulations) to risk-
weighted assets (as defined), and of Tier I capital (as
defined) to average assets (as defined).

Under the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC)
Improvement Actof 1991, the federal banking regulators are
required to take prompt corrective action if an insured
depository institution fails to satisfy certain minimum
capital requirements. An institution that fails to meet the
minimum level o be considered adequately capitalized (an
“undercapitalized institution”) may be: (i) subject to
increased monitoring by the appropriate federal banking
regulator; (ii) required to submit an acceptable capital
restoration plan within 45 days; (iii) subject to asset growth
limits; and {iv) required to obtain prior regulatory approval
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For the Years Ended December 312002 2001 and 2000

for acquisitions, branching and new lines of businesses. In

addition,

the federal banking regulators may impose

discretionary actions including, but not limited to, requiring

recapitalization,

restricting transactions with affiliates,

restricting asset growth and interest rates paid, and divestiture
of the insured institution by any company having control of

the institution,

The capital restoration plan required in item (ii) above must
include a guarantee by the institution’s holding company that
the institution will comply with the plan until it has been
adequately capitalized on average for four consecutive quarters,
under which the holding company would be liable up to the
lesser of 5% of the institution’s total assets or the amount
necessary to bring the institution into capital compliance as of

the date it failed to comply with its capital restoration plan.

The capital ratios and the regulatory framework for financial

institutions are depicted as set forth in the following tables:

Minimum Required

For Capital
Actual

Adequacy Purposes

(Expressed inthousands) Amount Ratio  Amount Ratio

As of December 31, 2002:
Total risk based capital
to risk weighted assets:

Consolidated 329,407 17.5% §13,441 8.0%
Bank 28,153 16.4% 13,719 8.0%
Tier I capital
to risk weighted assets:
Consolidated 27,279 16.2% 6,720 4.0%
Bank 25,983 15.2% 6,860 4.0%
Tier I leverage ratio:
Consolidated 27,279 97% 11,217 4.0%
Bank 25983 93% 11,201 4.0%
Minimum Required
ToBe Well Capitalized
Under Prompt Corrective
Action Regulations
(Expressed in thousands) Amount Ratio
As of December 31, 2002:
Total risk based capital
to risk weighted assets:
Consolidated $16,801 10.0%
Bank 17,149 10.0%
Tier I capital
to risk weighted assets:
Consolidated 10,081 6.0%
Bank 10,290 6.0%
Tier I leverage ratio:
Consolidated 14,021 5.0%
Bank 14,001 5.0%
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Minimum Required
For Capital
Adequacy Purposes
Amount Ratio

Actual
(Expressedin thousands) Amount Ratio
As of December 31, 2001:
Total risk based capital
to risk weighted assets:
Consolidated
Bank
Tier I capital
to risk weighted assets:

$22,008 13.2%
20,394 12.4%

$ 13,336 8.0%
13,152 8.0%

Consolidated 19,974 12.0% 6,668 4.0%
Bank 18,380 11.2% 6,576 4.0%
Tier I leverage ratio:
Consolidated 19,974 7.1% 11,297 4.0%
Bank 18,380 6.5% 11,235 4.0%
Minimum Required
To Be Well Capitalized
Under Prompt Corrective
Action Regulations
(Expressed in thousands) Amount Ratio
As of December 31, 2001:
Total risk based capital
to risk weighted assets:
Consolidated $16,670 10.0%
Bank 16,440 10.0%
Tier I capital
to risk weighted assets:
Consolidated 10,002 6.0%
Bank 9,864 6.0%
Tier I leverage ratio:
‘Consolidated 14,121 5.0%
Bank 14,043 5.0%

Consent Order and Federal Reserve Bank Agreement:
In a leiter dated November 5, 2002 from the Office of the
Comptroller of the Currency (“the OCC”), the Bank was
notified that a Consent Order dated August 3, 1999 against
the Bank by the OCC and a Memorandum of Understanding
dated July 25, 2001, were terminated effective October 3,
2002. In a letter dated January 10, 2003 from the Federal
Reserve Bank of Cleveland, the Company was notified that
the Written Agreement dated August 3, 1999 between the
Company and the Federal Reserve Bank was terminated
effective December 17, 2002. The termination of these
regulatory agreements eliminates various regulatory
restrictions placed on the Bank and the Company, and
permits the Bank and the Company to meet the designation
of “well capitalized” under capital adequacy guidelines and
the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action.
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26, Fanr Value of Financial Instruments

Statement of Finencial Accounting Standards Ne. 107,
“Tiisciosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments,”
requires disclosure of fair value information about financial
uments, whether or not recognized in the balance sheet.
E:z cases where quctel market prices are not available, fair

ziues are based on estimates using present value or other

b

st

val uation techniques. Those techniques are significantly
affected by the assumotions used, including the discount rate
ard estimates of futurs cash flows. In thatregard, the derived
fair value estimates cennot be substantiated by comparison to
independent markets and, in many cases, could not be
realt ed m immediate settlements of *he instruments.
Statement 107 excluces certain financial instruments and ail

nonfinanct al instruments from its disclosure requirements.

Tae fair value cf off-balance sheet instruments is not
considerec materiai. In addition, the value of long-term
relationships with depositors and other customers is not
reflected.  The wvelue of these items is significant.
Accordingly, the agg“egatc air value amounts presented do
n3t represent the uncerlying value of the Company.

The following methods and assumptions were used in
est 1mat1ﬂg fair values of financial instruments as disclosed
herein:

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Accrued Interest Receivable:
50r those short-terir instruments, the carrying amount is a
rzasonable estimate of fair value.

ceal

securities

Loans: For certain homogeneous categones of i

ioans. The

creditretings and fo: the same remaining maturiti
vaiue of impaired |
-elated reserves.

Deposit Liabilities: The fair value of demand c.pposhs
3avings accounts
amount payable on demand at the reporting date.

remain i”g maturities.

Short-Term Borrowings: These liabilities repres:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Securities: TFor debt securities and marketable equity
ecuri-"es, fair values are based on quoted market prices or

r guotes. If a quoted market pnce is not avaxlable fair
\'alue is estimated using quoted market prices for similar

cans, such
«s some residential mortgages, fair value is estimated using
the quoted market drices for securities backed by similar
he fair value of other types of loans is estimatec by
discounting the future cash flows using the current rates at
which similar loans would be made to borrowers with simizar
ies. The fair
cans was estimated at book valiue, net of

, and certain money market deposits is the
The fair
value of fixed-maturity certificates of deposit is estimated
using the rates currently offered for deposits of similar

ent
Sl

primari! y overnight borrowings and debt maturing withiz
ninety days of issuance with interest rates adjusted daily or

Weedy Accoaungly, the camrymg amoum iSa reasomable
estimate of fair value.

Long-Term Borrowings: The fair values of long-term
borrowings are estimated using discounted cash flow
analyses based on the Company’s current incremental
borrowing rates for similar types of borrowing arrangements.

The estimated fair values of the Company's financial

instruments are as follows:
2002 2001
Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated

{Expressedinthousands) Amount FairValue Amount FairValue
Financial assets:

Cashdue frombanks $ 9440 § 9440 $ 14,587 $ 14,587
Federal fundssold 13,600 13,600 17,600 17,600
Loansheld forsale 786 800 534 534
Securitiesavailableforsale 122,794 122,794 125,551 125,551
Loans, net 126472 131,420 110,364 114,096
Accruedinteresireceivable 1,600 1,600 1,541 1,541
Financial liabilities:

Deposits 230,243 231,866 238,486 238,909
Repurchase agreements 1,307 1,306 647 646
Accrued interesipayable 37 377 652 652
Long-termborrowings 21,056 22,865 20,000 20,502

21. Condensed Parent Company Financial Statements

Presented below are the condensed balance sheets,
statemenis of income, and statements of cash flows for
Belment Bancorp.

Balance Sheets (Expressed inthousands)
December31,
2002 2001
Assets
Cash $1,165 $ 1,334
Invesiment in subsidiaries
(atequity in net assets) 32,651 23,684
Equity securities 343 284
Advances o subsidiaries 807 627
Other assets 898 1,349
Total assets $ 35864 $ 27278
Liabilities
Accrued expense § 3 $ -
Payable to subsidiary 1,026 805
Deferred compensation 78 627
Total liabilities 1,107 1,432
Shareholders’ equity 34,757 25,846 |
Total liabilities and
shareholder’s equity $ 35,804 $ 27,278 -
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21. Condensed Parent Company Financil tatemes

Belmont Bancorp. and Subsidiaries

(continued)
Statements of Income
2002 2001 2000
Operating income
Impairment loss in market decline
on equity securities § — §(113) § (56
Other income 33 65 71
Total income (loss) 33 (48) 15
Operating expenses 253 194 141
Lossbefore income tax
and equity in undistributed
income of subsidiaries (220) (242) (126)
Income tax benefit 67) (31 (43)
Equity in undistributed income (loss)
of subsidiaries 6.150 (204) 1.469
Netincome (loss) $5997 §(415) $1.386
Statements of Cash Flows
2002 2001 2000

R R

Operating activities
Netincome (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss)
to net cash from operating activities:
Impairment loss in market decline
on equity securities
Undistributed (earnings} loss of affiliates
Common stock options granted
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Prepaid expenses
Accrued expenses and dividends
Other

$ 5,997 § (415) § 1,386

Cash from operating activities

Investing activities
Payments from subsidiaries
Payments to subsidiaries
Additional investment in subsidiary
Investment redemption

Cash from investing activities

Financing activities
Issuance of common stock
Stock optionsexercised (7,000 shares)

Cash from financing activities

Increase (decrease) in cash & cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

— 113 56
(6,150) 204  (1,469)
33 92 —
— — 508
(566) 29 40
451 (306)  (295)
(235)  (283) 226
21 A4S 202
(180)  (180)  (175)
— —(9329)
— 150 —
41 215 (9292)
— — 93
25 — —
25 — 9327
(169)  (68) 261
1334 1402 1,14

Cashand cash equivalentsatend of year

$ 1,165 § 1334 § 1402
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S R
22. Comprehensive Income

The components of other comprehensive income were as
follows:
(Expressed in thousands) 2002 2001 2000
Unrealized holding gains

arising during the period $ 4354 & 739 $ 5,546
Reclassification adjustment (27) 120 4)

Net gains
arising during the period 4327 859 5,542

Tax effect (1471) (292) (1.884)
Other comprehensive income $ 285 8 567 8 3658

23, Litigation

The Company and its subsidiaries have been named as
defendants in legal actions.

During December 2001, the Company reached a
comprehensive legal settlement wherein five lawsuits were
resolved, including a costly derivative action. Proceeds from
the settlement totaled $6.3 million and were recorded during
the first and second quarters of 2002. Each case, concluded
as a result of the comprehensive settlement, was either
directly or indirectly related to losses incurred by the
Company during 1998 and 1999 for commercial loans to
Schwartz Homes, Inc., formerly the Bank’s largest
commercial borrower, and an interim-lending program
offered by the Bank to customers for Schwartz Homes, Inc.
Schwartz Homes, Inc. filed bankruptcy during 1999 and was
subsequently liquidated. All payments received and
recorded by the Company for the comprehensive settlement,
except for $675,000 received for its fidelity bond policy,
were net of plaintiff’s attorneys fees and costs; those fees
and costs were approximately $3.6 million. Mr. James J.
Fleagane, the shareholder who commenced the derivative
action on behalf of the Company, filed a motion in the
derivative litigation seeking compensation for his time spent
prosecuting the case. The Circuit Court of Ohio County,
West Virginia, denied his request. In May 2002, Mr.
Fleagane filed a Petition for Appeal to the West Virginia
Supreme Court of Appeals, and in January 2003, the Court
agreed to hear the appeal. The Company intends to
vigorously oppose Mr. Fleagane’s request for payment.

In February 2001, Belmont National Bank filed a foreclosure
action in the Common Pleas Court of Harrison County, Chio
against Martin Snyder, et al., for loans Snyder had with the
Bank. In May 2001, Snyder filed a lender liability
counterclaim against the Bank which claimed that through
certain actions the Bank and its representatives caused
Snyder’s business to fail and thereby “deprived defendants
of their unfettered will.” Snyder sought compensatory
damages in excess of $25,000 and punitive damages to be
determined at trial. In December 2002, the parties agreed to
settle this matter, and appropriate documentation is pending
to formally dismiss the case.



Belmont Bancorp. and Subsidiaries

Nctes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For "he Years Ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000
- :

23. Litigation (continued)

In October 2001, in a civil action in the Circuit Court of Ohio
County, West Virginia, Manuel A. Velez, DDS filed a pro se
complaint against the Company doing business as Belmont
Nationa! Bank with respect to the terms of refinancing of a
commercial loan. The complaint sought rescission of the
contract, compensatorv damages in excess of $50,000, and
puritive damages of $200,000, together with fees and costs.
The Company filed a timely answer and a counterclaim for a
coriplaint on a promissory note as against the pro se plaintiff.
This matter was schedualed for trial on November 19, 2002,
The Compeny filed z motion for summary judgment to
disiniss the case, and a hearing was scheduled for November
15, 2002. At that time, the matter was dismissed in favor of
the Bank’s motion for summary judgment, and the dismissal
judzment was entered in the Ohio County Clerk’s Office,
West Virginia, on February 18, 2003.

Ir October, 2001, in the United States District Court for the
No:thern District of Ohio, an action was filed by BVM
Hospitality, Inc., Kiran Patel, Raman Patel and Chandu Patel
against Belmont Natio:aal Bank, four of its directors and one
of ts officers. The claim alleged that the Bank declined to
extend credit based upon national origin. Plaintiffs sought
$628,508 in compensatory damages and $500,000 in punitive
dariages. On Octeber 10, 2002, the Ohio Civil Rights
Commission filed a complaint against the Bank arising out of
the same matter pending in the Federal Court. An
adrinistrative hearing originally set on that matter on April §,
2003, was stayed pending the outcome of the civil matter.
Wih discovery ccmplete, both sides filed motions for
summary judgment in the civil action. While the motions
remained pending, on February 14, 2003, the parties agreed to
settle all claims. Plantiffs also agreed to take steps to
withdraw or terminate the proceedings instituted by the Ohio
Civil Rights Commission. As the parties finalized the
set'lement, and upon notice of the settlement, on February 20,
2003, the Court dismissed the civil case. The administrative
act.on has not yet beer: dismissed.

Mznagement believes, based on the advice of counsel, that no
accrual for loss is necessary at year-end 2002. However,
losses were reasonably possible and subsequent to December
31, 2002, settlements were reached in all cases (except for
Mr. Fleagane’s Petition for Appeal previously described)
resualting in charges during the first quarter of 2003 of
approximately $50,000.

24. Stock Option Plan

On May 21, 2001, the Company’s shareholders approved the
Be.mont Bancorp. 2001 Stock Option Plan (the “Plan”). The
Plan authorized the granting of up to 1,000,000 shares of
cornmeon stock as qua.ified and nonqualified stock options.
Generally, one-fourta of the options awarded become
exercisable on each of the four anniversaries of the date of
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grant. However, some of the options granted in 2001 vested
immediately on the date of grant with the remaining amount
vesting over the next three to four years. The option period
expires 10 years from the date of grant.

A summary of the activity in the plan was as follows:

Weighted

Average

Available Options  Exercise

For Grant Outstanding Price
Balance, January 1, 2001 — N —
Authorized 1,000,000 — —

Granted (221,000) 221,000 $3.26
Balance, December 31, 2001 779,000 221,000 $3.26
Granted (140,500) 140,500 §4.50
Exercised (7,000) $3.60
Forfeited 53,000 (53,000) $3.79
Balance, December 31, 2002 691,500 301,500 §3.74

Options exercisable at December 31, 2002 66,500  $2.65
Options outstanding at December 31, 2002 were as follows:

Weighted
Average
Remaining

Exercise Number  Contractual ~ Number
Price Ouistanding Life (Years) Exercisable
$2.00 75,000 8.1 45,000
$3.90 20,000 9.2 _—
$4.00 86,000 9.0 21,500
$4.60 115,500 10.0 —
$4.70 5,000 9.6 —
Total 301,500 9.2 66,500

Pro forma information for net income and earnings per
common shareis presented in Note 1. Compensation expense,
net of taxes, of $22,000 for the year ended December 31,
2002 and $61,000 for the year ended December 31,2001 was
recognized to reflect the impact of granting certain options
below their market price.
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(Expressed in thousands except per share amounts)

Net Net Earnings (Loss)
Interest Interest Income Per Common Share
Income Income  (Loss) Basic Fully Diluted
2002
First quarter ~ $3,799 $2,065 $2,084 $ 0.19 $0.19
Second quarter 3,833 2,249 1,732 0.16 0.16
Third quarter 3,912 2,352 689 0.06 0.06
Fourth quarter 3,733 2,251 1,492 0.13 0.13
2001
First quarter  $4,671 $2,015 § 165 § 0.0] $ 0.01
Second quarter 4,762 2,174 175 0.02 0.02
Third quarter 4421 1,975 (462) (0.04) (0.04)
Fourth quarter 4,277 2,157 (293) (0.03) (0.03)

Net income for the first and second quarters of 2002 was
positively impacted by the distribution of settlement proceeds
from the Company’s derivative action. Exclusive of these
settlement proceeds and related expenses, the Company would
have reported net earnings of $161,000 for the first quarter and
$234,000 for the second quarter. Net income for the third quarter
included a reduction to the allowance for loan losses in the
amount of $500,000 and was reflected as a negative loan loss
provision; the effect of this negative provision was to increase
income after taxes by $330,000. Net income for the fourth
quarter of 2002 included a tax benefit of $864,000 due to the
elimination of a $1,000,000 valuation allowance for deferred
tax assets. Net income for the fourth quarter of 2002 also
included a reduction to the allowance for loan losses in the
amount of $529,000 and was reflected as a negative loan loss
provision; the effect of this negative provision was to increase
income after taxes by $349,000.

The net loss during the fourth quarter of 2001 included a
reduction to the allowance for loan losses in the amount of
$600,000 and was reflected as a negative loan loss provision;
the effect of this negative provision was to increase income
after taxes by $396,000. The net loss reported for the year
ended December 31, 2001 included legal fees and settlement
charges, net of related taxes, of $647,000 during the third
quarter of 2001 and $865,000 during the fourth quarter of 2001.

The factors used in the earnings per share computation
follow:

(Expressed in thousands except share and per share data)

2002 2001 2000
Basic:
Net Income (Loss) $ 5997 $ (415) § 1,386
Weighted average common shares
outstanding 11,105,584 11,101,403 8,778,621
Basic earnings (loss) per
common share 3 0.54 $§ (004 § 0.6
Diluted:
Net Income (Loss) $ 5997 $ @15 § 1386
Weighted average common shares
outstanding for basic earnings per
common share 11,105,584 11,101,403 8,778,621
Add: Dilutive effects of assumed
exercises of stock options 46,690 - —
Average shares and dilutive .
potential common shares 11,152,274 11,101,403 8,778,621
Diluted earnings (loss) per
common share $ 0.54 $ (004 § 0.6

Stock options for 28,420 shares of common stock were not
considered in computing diluted earnings per share for 2001 because
they were antidilutive. No stock options were outstanding during
2000.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
|
To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of
Belmont Bancorp.

V/e have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of
Belmont Bancorp. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2002 and
2301, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes
in shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years
i the period ended December 31, 2002. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management.
Cur respensibility is fo express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.

Ve conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards
gznerally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance zbout whether the financial statements are
free of material missta‘ement. An audit includes examining, ona
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
p-esentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

In our opinion, the coasolidated financial statements referred to
a>ove present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of Belmont Bancorp. and subsidiaries at December 31, 2002 and
2301, and the results of its operations and its cash flows, for each
of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2002, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

(o, TR md Cm{wd LLf
Crowe, Chizek and Company LLP

Columbus, Ohio
February 20, 2003
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Manager/Director, Beck-Altmeyer Funeral Home

David R. Giffin

Vice President, Beaconsfield Financial Services;
Owner/President, Giffin Management Group, Giffin
Financial Group, Giffin Mortgage Company, Inc.,
Pension Systems, Inc., and Marina Investors Group, Inc.

John H. Goodman, II
President, Goodman Group, Inc.

David B. Kelley i
Senior Vice President, Belmont Bancorp.;
Senior Vice President, Commercial Lending,
Belmont National Bank

Terrence A. Lee
CPA, Owner, Lee & Associates

James R. Miller
President & Chief Executive Officer,
Howden Industrial

Belmont Bancorp. Officers

David R. Giffin
Chairman

Charles A. Wilson, Jr.
Vice Chairman

Belmont National Bank Officers

David R. Giffin
Chairman

Charles A. Wilson, Jr.

Vice Chairman

Wilbur R. Roat

President and Chief Executive Officer
David B. Kelley

Senior Vice President, Commercial Lending
Jane R. Marsh

Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Cashier
Douglas S. Betar

Vice President, Commercial Lending
Christopher J. Delatore

Vice President, Commercial Lending

Larry G. Gibbs
Vice President and Trust Officer

Belmont Financial Network, inc. z==

Tillio P. Petrozzi

President and Chief Executive Officer,

T.P. Mining, Inc.; President & Chief Executive Officer,

New Horizon Youth Center, LLC; President & Co-owner,
North Point Consulting and Behavioral Health Services, LLC

Wilbur R. Roat
President and Chief Executive Officer,
Belmont Bancorp. & Belmont National Bank

Brian L. Schambach . .-
Regional Marketing Manager, Nalco Chemical Company

Keith A. Sommer
Attomey, President,
Sommer, Liberati and Berhalter Co., LPA

Charles A. Wilson, Jr.

Vice Chairman, Belmont Bancorp.

and Belmont National Bank; Ohio State Representative;
President, Wilson Funeral & Furniture Co.

Wilbur R. Roat
President & Chief Executive Officer

David B. Kelley
Senior Vice President

Jane R. Marsh
Secretary and Chief Financial Officer

Dorothy Harris
Vice President, Manager, Information Systems &
Operations

Mark R. Martens
Vice President, Retail Sales and Marketing

Mark D. Nicholson
Vice President, Commercial Lending

Denise Penz
Vice President, Manager, Investment Management &
Trust Services

John J. Rataiczak
Vice President, Mortgage Operations

Michael Taylor
Vice President, Manager, Credit Administration

Wilbur R. Roat
Chairman and President

Jane R.Marsh
Secretary and Treasurer



Belnont National Bank Locations —

Beliaire Office
Imperial Plaza
330-28th Street
Bellaire, OH 43906
(740) 671-3036

Bridgeport Office
325 Main Street
Bricgeport, OH 43912
(740} 635-1142

Caciz Office

657 Lincoln Avenue
Cadiz, OH 43907
(740) 942-4664

Ehm Grove Office
2043 National Road
Whaeeling, WV 26003
(30<) 243-6570

Lansing Office
55156 National Road
Lansing, OH 43934
(740) 635-1454

Nev’ Philadelphia Office

152 North Broadway

News Philadelphia, OH 44663

(330) 343-5518

Ohio Valley Mall Office

Okio Valley Mall

St. Clairsville, OH 42950

(740) 695-9926

Plaza West

100 Plaza Drive

St. Clairsville, OH 43950
(740) 695-8484

St. Clairsvilie Gifice

154 West Main Street

St. Clairsviile, OH 43950
(740) 695-3323

Schoenbrunn Gifice

2300 East High Avenue

New Philadelphia, OH 44663
(330) 339-9200

Shadyside Office
4105 Central Avenue
Shadyside, GH 43947
(740) 671-9346

Woodsdale Office
980 National Road
Wheeling, WV 26003
(304) 233-9691

Our Internet Address:

www.belmontbank.com



Common Stock

Transfer Agent

Enquiries

Equal Empioymém

Corporate Information mess

Belmont Bancorp.’s common stock is listed on the Small-Cap
Market of NASDAQ under the symbol BLMT.

Questions regarding stock holdings, certificate replacement/
transfer, dividends, and address changes should be directed to:
Registrar and Transfer Company, 10 Commerce Dr., Cranford,
New Jersey 07016, or call 1-800-525-7686.

Inquiries, comments and suggestions concerning Belmont
Bancorp. are welcome. Individual shareholders, analysts and
institutional investors should contact Ms. Jane Marsh, Secretary,
at 1-740-695-3323 or 1-800-542-0174.

Belmont Bancorp. is committed to providing equal employment
opportunities to every employee and every applicant for
employment, regardless of, but not limited to such factors as
race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, familial or marital
status, ancestry, citizenship, sexual orientation, veteran status
or being a qualified individual with a disability.







Belmont Bancorp.
325 Main Street
Bridgeport, OH 43912
(740) 695-3323
Fax: (740) 695-4921






